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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
OFFICE OF THE CITY AUDITOR

CITY HALL 01608

JAMES A. DeISIGNORE, CPA

CITY AUDITOR

October 31,2012

To the Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Worcester, Massachusetts:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Worcester, Massachusetts (the City)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is presented for your review. The report was prepared by the
Auditing Department in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. V/e believe that the data, as presented, is
accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial
position and results ofoperations ofthe City; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
the maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs have been made.

In evaluating the City's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting
controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance

regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthoized use or disposition and the reliability of
hnancial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of internal controls should not exceed their anticipated
benefits. Also, the evaluation of costs and benefrts requires estimates and judgments by management.

Sullivan, Rogers & Company, LLC, a hrm of licensed certif,red public accountants, has audited the City's
basic fmancial statements. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the basic financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Sullivan,
Rogers & Company,LLC has issued an unqualified opinion on the City of Worcester's basic financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.The independent auditors' report is presented as the hrst
component of the financial section of this report.



Pursuant to the Federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the City
is also required to have an annual audit ofthe federal financial assistance it has received. In addition to a

financial statement audit, the Single Audit Act requires that an internal control review and a compliance
audit be performed in accordance with the Federal Office of Management and Budget's CircularA-133.
The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development was assigned audit cognizant
responsibilities. The requirements of the Single Audit Act have been met. The auditors' reports on internal
control and compliance have been furnished separately to the City.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management provide
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic f,rnancial statements in the form of
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following
the report ofthe independent auditors.

City of Worcester Government

Worcester was incorporated as a town on June 14, 1722 and as a city on February 29, 1848 under Acts of
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the Commonwealth), which as amended, constitute the City's
charter. The City is located in the east central part of Massachusetts. It is 39 miles from Boston, 43 miles
from Providence, Rhode Island and 60 miles from Hartford, Connecticut. The Towns of Holden, West
Boylston, Shrewsbury, Grafton, Millbury, Auburn, Leicester and Paxton border it. The City occupies
38.44 square miles and is the second largest city in New England with a population of 181,045, according
to the 2010 federal census. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal
property located within its boundaries. The City is also empowered to levy an excise tax on motor vehicles
whose owner is a resident or business located in the City. Additionally, the City is allotted a portion of the
hotel, meals and sales taxes collected within its jurisdiction by the state.

The City has operated under the council-manager form of government since 1950. An eleven-member City
Council, six of whom are elected at-large and five of whom are elected from districts, performs the
legislative function and policy-making. The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances and adopting the budget. City Council members are elected biennially on a non-partisan basis.

The City Manager, appointed by the City Council, is the chief executive officer with appointive and
removal authority over department heads and other employees of the City. The City Manager is responsible
for the implementation of policies established by the City Council and for overseeing the day{o-day
operations of the government. The City Auditor and City Clerk are elected by and are employees of the
City Council.

The Mayor is the councilor who receives the highest number of votes for mayor provided he or she is also
elected as one of the six at-large councilors. The Mayor serves as presiding officer of the council and
ex-ofhcio Chairperson of the School Committee.

An elected six-member School Committee, whose members are elected biennially on a non-partisan basis,
has exclusive jurisdiction over the City's public school system and appoints a superintendent to administer
the system's day-to-day affairs.

The City provides a full range of services including public safety, public roads, sanitation, water, sewer,
health and social services, culture, recreation, education, public improvements, plarming and zoning, and
general administrative services. The City is also financially responsible for the legally separate Worcester
Retirement System (WRS), Upper Blackstone Water Pollution Abatement District (the District) and
Worcester Redevelopment Authority (WRA), all of which are reported within the City's basic financial
statements. Additional information on these legally separate entities can be found in the notes to the basic
financial statements.



All department operating and capital budget requests are required to be submitted to the City Manager by
mid-January. The City Manager then reviews these requests with every department head during a series of
meetings. In accordance with MGL Chapler 44, the City Manager must then submit his proposed budget
within 170 days after the City Council organizes in early January. The Council is required to hold public
hearings and to adopt a final budget no later than 45 days after the budget is submitted to them. Budgetary
control is centralized and enforced on a statutory account basis. Statutory accounts are maintained on a
departmental level and consist of salary, capital and ordinary maintenance accounts. Purchase requisitions
and payrolls, which would result in an ovelTun of an account balance, are not processed until additional
appropriations are made available. Transfers between statutory accounts within a department require a
simple majority approval by the City Council and transfers from one department to another require a

two-thirds majority. Open encumbrances are reported as liabilities. All expenditures are subject to a

pre-audit before being processed.

Budget-to-actual comparisons for the general fund are presented on pages 92 through 99 as part of required
supplementary information.

Local economy

For the past several years Worcester has seen its employment base shift from manufacturing to services. In
conjunction with that there has been several development projects related to health care and entertainment
in the downtown area. The City has a diverse tax base with no concentration in any particular area.

Worcester has ten colleges and universities, most of which have been continually expanding. For example,
the University of Massachusetts Medical School is nearly finished constructing a $405 million 500,000
square foot science and research facility on its campus. Worcester Polytechnic Institute recently finished
constructing a $53 million recreation center on its campus and is now constructing housing for 300
graduate students and a 500 space parkiîg garage that will have athletic fields on its roof. A1so, the
College of the Holy Cross is constructing a $20 million residence hall and Worcester State University is
about to construct a new residence hall and a new gymnaslum.

Construction has recently been completed on a new $302 million Worcester State Hospital.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

CSX is constructing their New England distribution headquarters in Worcester at a cost of $140 million
with completion targeted for the end of calendar year 2072. This will not only boost the local economy
with additional jobs but it will help clear the way for additional commuter trains between Worcester and

Boston adding up 8 additional to the existing 12 dally round trips.

Worcester Regional Airport was sold to the Massachusetts Port Authority (Massport) in July 2010 and the

new owners have demonstrated a willingness to make improvements necessary, such as a top tier landing
system to attract commercial airlines with Jet Blue expressing more than a passing interest in providing
that service in the future.



Finally, construction has continued on the CitySquare project. About half of the 20 acre site was

purchased by a new developer and the hrst phase of demolition has been completed. The other half of the
site, which houses two office buildings a garage and some retail space, is to be retained and renovated by
the current owner. Currently nearing completion is a 7-story 214,000 square foot $110 million office
building to house the Unum Group. Also under construction is a 3-story 66,000 square foot $23 million
cancer center to be owned and operated by Vanguard Health Services. Discussions are continuing with
several other potential developers to fill out the site with diverse projects to include retail, housing and
perhaps a hotel. The new developer's total investment in the project is estimated to be about $470 million
over a period of 6 to 8 years. The City is to contribute about $61 million, the state $25 million and the

federal government $3.5 million mainly for the cost of demolition, infrastructure and an underground
garage. The City will use District Improvement Financing legislation, which allows for the capitalization
ofinterest and a 3O-year loan term to hnance its share ofthe costs. It is anticipated that increased property
values and related taxes from CitySquare construction will fully service the City's debt associated with this
project.

Also having a major impact on the downtown area has been the steady expansion of the Massachusetts

College of Pharmacy. There are currently 1,200 students living and attending classes in the City's
downtown with plans to double in size during the next 5 to 8 years. The college and commuter rail have

helped galvanize apartment construction in the downtown area with approximately 400 units being added

recently and with expansion of commuter rail and the college there portends to be a need for several

additional units. Quinsigamond Community College is also in the process of seeking space for a satellite
campus in the downtown.

In November of 2006 the City Council adopted a Five Point Plan designed to improve the City's financial
position that was submitted by the City Manager. The plan involves a five-year financial forecast,
quarterly reporls to the City Council, a borrowing cap, a capital improvement program integrated with the
five-year forecast and borrowing cap and a policy to boost reserves to 5-percent of the general fund's total
annual revenues and also provide a dedicated source to fund construction of a new Norlh High School
along with various other projects. Funding has come from approximately $30 million in retroactive school
construction aid to the City from the state that is being paid over a lO-year period. Also, proceeds from
meals, hotel and sales taxes collected in the DCU Center enterprise zoîe are added to this fund.
Additionally, the City has been dedicating at least 50-percent of annual "Free Cash" to a "bond rating
stabilization fund" to help reach the goal of having general fund reserves of 5-percent of general fund
revenues. The City has followed this policy since its implementation. Additionally, as part of this plan
starting in fiscal 2013 the City will contribute 3O-percent annually to pre-fund the liability for Other Post

Emplol.rnent Benefits (OPEB). The City also plans to provide $5 million towards OPEB funding in the
fiscal 20 14 budget with that amount increasing by 7 .5 percent arurually thereafter.

'Worcester's total assessed property value had increased steadily from hscal 1996 through fiscal 2008 when
values rose to an all time high of $12.727 billion. Total assessed property value decreased in each of the

next three years but increased to $ 1 1 .278 billion in fiscal 2012, .421 billion or 3 .9%o more than the previous
yeaf.

Awards and,A.cknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Worcester, Massachusetts

for its CAFR for the year ended June 30, 2011. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national
award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government

financial reports.



In order to be awarded a Certificate, a goveflìment must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfu both
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certihcate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last nineteen consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to conform to
the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Auditing Department. I also wish to acknowledge our indebtedness to
personnel in other City departments who assisted in our preparation. I am grateful to the City's
independent auditors, Sullivan, Rogers & Company,LLC, for the professional assistance and advice they
have provided during the course of their audit. In addition, I would like to thank the members of the City
Council for your support.

Respectfully submitted,

James A. DelSignore, CPA
City Auditor
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Independent .A,uditors' Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govem.mental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Worcester, Massachusetts (the City), as of and for the year ended June3}, 2012
(except for the Worcester Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 31,
2077), which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These

financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Upper Blackstone
Water Pollution Abatement District (the District), a discretely presented component unit. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for the District, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Al audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signif,rcant estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present faitly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, discretely presented component units, each major fund, and The aggregale remaining
fund information of the City as of June 30, 2072 (except for the Worcester Contributory Retirement System,

which is as of December 31, 2071) and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2012, on
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in conjunction with this report in assessing the results of our audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis (located on pages 11 through 23) and budgetary comparison and certain pension and
other postemployment benefits information (located on pages 92 through 102) be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic fìnancial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, supplementary statements and
schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the financial statements. The supplementary statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fìnancial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on them.

October 31,2072
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CITY OF WORCESTBR, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Jtne 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

This section of the City's annual f,rnancial report presents a discussion and analysis of the City's financial
activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2072 to assist readers of the basic financial statements in
understanding the financial activities of the City. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the
front of this report and the basic financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Ilighlights

o The assets of the City (p.itna.y government) exceeded its liabilities (net assets) at the close of fiscal2072
by 5194,999.

¡ The City's total net assets increased by $5,178 or 2.7o/o during the year.

o At the end of fiscal 2012, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $25,520 or 4.4%o of total
general fund revenues.

o "Free Cash", certified by the state's Department of Revenue as of July I,2072 was $4,285. This amount is
unassigned in the general fund and available for appropriation in fiscal 2013.

r The City's total capital assets (net) increased by $45,837 or 5.9o/o during ñscal2072.

. The City's total debt decreased by S7,444 or L3%o during fiscal2072.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic f,rnancial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements report information about
the City with a broad overview of its finances using accounting methods similar to those used by a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information of all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial health of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during fiscal2012.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event causing the change takes place. Therefore,
all of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when
cash is received or paid (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave, etc.).

The govemment-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories:

. Governmental activities - Governmental activities of the City such as general government, public works,
public safety, public roads, sanitation, education, health, recreation, and culture are reported here. Property
taxes, state aid, and local fees and charges finance most of these activities.

11



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

. Business-type activities - The City charges fees to users to help it cover costs of certain services it
provides. The City's water, seui er, airport and golf course (nonmajor) operations are included here.

. Component units - The government-wide financial statements not only include the governmental and
business-type activities (known as the primary government) but also legally separate entities. There are

two legally separate component unit entities presented discretely in this report, which are the Worcester
Redevelopment Authority and the Upper Blackstone Water Pollution Abatement District. These entities
are included because the City is financially accountable for them.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25 through 27 of lhis report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
f,rnance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds - Similar to the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, most
of the City's basic services are presented here. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds f,rnancial statements focus on short-term inflows and outflows of available resources. They
also focus on the balances of available resources at the end of the fìscal year. This information may be useful in
evaluating a government' s near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is short-term and government-wide are long-term it is useful to
compare similar information presented for governmental funds with governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. This comparison may demonstrate the long-term implications of
short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 32 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the general fund, the CitySquare fund, the debt service fund and the school grants fund, each of
which are considered major funds. Data from the 28 other governmental funds are combined into a single
aggregaled presentation titled "other governmental funds". Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements.

The City adopts an annual budget for its general fund and its enterprise funds.

The govemmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 31.

t2



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACIIUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

Proprietary funds - The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for water, sewer, airport, and golf course operations, with the water, sewer
and airport considered major funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for
its self-insured health plan. Because this service benefits predominantly governmental rather than business-type
functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide f,rnancial statements, only in
more detail. Conversely, the internal service fund is shown as a single presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements.

The proprietary fund f,inancial statements can be found on pages 32 through 34.

Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees' pension plan. It is also responsible for other
assets that because of a trust arrangement can be used only for the trust beneficiaries and the agency fund. The
City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reporled in these funds are used for their intended purposes. A1l of
the City's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of f,rduciary net assets and a statement of
changes in f,rduciary net assets. These activities are excluded from the City's government-wide financial
statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is similar to that used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 35 through 36.

Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 37 through 91.

Other information - In addition to the basic f,rnancial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents required supplementary infomation which includes the General Fund Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis and certain pension and
other postemployment benefits information.

Other required supplementary information can be found on pages 92lbrough 102.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements. As noted
earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the City's
case, assets exceeded liabilities by $194,999 at the close of the most recent f,rscal year and are summarized as

follows:
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Jlune30,2012

(Lr thousands of dollars)

Net assets

Governmental Activites Business-type Activities Total

Cur¡ent and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Irng-tem liabilities

Other liabilities

Total lìabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net assets

2012 20tt
29'7,92128'7,920

s98,061 560,024

885,98 I 85'7,945

666,731 653,1s8

122,877 tt2,6t9
189,614 765,177

326,294 329,t64

8t9,325 173,48'l

1,145,619 1,r02,651259,638 244,706

t32,199 t32,064

28,807 14,989

161,006 147 ,053

2012

38,374

221,264

20tl
31,243

213,463

20ll2012

288,7'76

40,376

(232,78s)

s 96,367

280,669

42,290

(230,79t)

92,r68

87,8s6

10,716

98,632

't98,936

151,684

950,620

316,632

40,376

(222,009)

785,222

121,608

912,830

368,317

43,892

(222,448)

87,'708

1,602

8,343

97,653 194,999 189,821

The largest pofiion of the City's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
improvements other than buildings, equipment and other, rolling equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress), less any related debt to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets

to provide services to citizens: consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

An additional portion ofthe City's net assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The remaining amount of unrestricted net assets shows a balance of ($222,009). However, this
balance includes outstanding pension obligation bonds of 5158,045 for which there are no offsetting assets in the
governmental funds. General obligation bonds were also issued to finance land acquisition and pollution
remediation to make way for a for-profit hospital in the City's downtown as well as for rehabilitation of Union
Station, which is owned by the City's redevelopment authority (a component unit). There are also no offsetting
assets in the governmental funds for this debt, which had balances of $13,678 and $1,784, respectively, at year's
end. Additionally, the City has a note payable of $4,396 for improvement to neighborhood assets it does not own
and also owes $953 for the Blackstone Valley Visitors Center, which was destroyed by fire. There was also

$I7,92I of unspent capital debt at the end of the year. Added to that list this year is $2,003 of airport debt, which
is no longer owned by the City. Absent the fore mentioned debt, there is a balance of ($23,230) of unrestricted
net assets.

At the end of ftscal 2012, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets for
business-type activities and all but unrestricted net assets in the governmental activities.

Business-type activities had an increase in other liabilities of $13,818 or 92.2%o as temporary loans increased
from $10,240 to $24,183. Other liabilities also increased for governmental activities by $10,258 or 9.7%o as

temporary loans increased from $30,843 to $48,130. Governmental activities capital assets increased by $38,037
or 6.80/o as many City buildings have been renovated to produce energy savings at a cost of $13,038 during the
year and public works infrastructure and related construction-in-progress increased by $25,257 over the prior
year. The majority of funding for these projects is from debt financing.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

J:une30,2012

(úr thousands of dollars)

The City's total net assets increased by $5,178, or 2.7%o, summarized as follows:

Governmental activities Business-type activities
2012 2012

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and

contributions

Capital grants and

contributions

General ¡evenues:

PropeÉy taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes

Intergovemrnental

Other

Total revenues

Expenses:

General govemrnent

Public safety

Health and human services

Education

Public works

Culture and recreation

Cornmunity development

lnterest on long{em debt

Water

Sewer

Aþort
Golf course

Total expenses

Change in net assets before

lransfers, contributions, loss

on airport disposal and

extraordinary item

Transfers

Contributions

Loss on aiçort disposal

Extraordianry itern - transfer ofairport debt

to govemmental activities

Change in net assets

Net assets beginning

Net assets - ending

62,572

2,691

20tt

58,4s3

1,282

641

Total
2012 20tt

99,247 92,9s2

363.538 369,439

$ 36,675

3 63,s3 8

10,691

22s,460

I I,866

36,298

9,886

694,414

2t,552
126,488

20,597

43s,s26
39,s84

21,535

4,399

23,968

34,499

368,157

32,916

215,51l

I 1 ,519

36,220

12,809

711,631

21,026

123,114

25,033

432,824

37,435

t],528
7,926

22,573

6s,263 60,376 '7 59,677

13,382

22s,460

1 1,866

36,298

9.886

33,557

215,511

I 1,519

36,220

12,809

712,007

21,026

123,\t 4

25,033

432,824

37,435

t7,528
'7,926

22,5'73

24,911

33,'737

1,4t7
t,238

748,762693,649 687,4s9

24,388

35,284

1,246

60,918

24,91r
33,737

1,41'7

1,238

61 ,303

21,552

t26,488
20,591

43s,526

39,s84

21,535

4,399

23,968

24,388

35,284

1,246

154,567

165

3,366

68

4,199

92,168

s 96.367

24,172

13,250

48

(3,05s)

34,415

s],'t53
92,r68

4,345

(3,366)

979
q't 651

,8,6T'

(e2'7)

(13,2s0)

(20,t93)

3,05s

(3 1,3 1 s)

r28,968
97,6s3

5,1 10

68

21,24s

48

(20,t93)

5,178

1 89,82 I
t94,999

3,100

186,'121

I 89,82 l
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental activities - Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $4,199. The key elements
of this increase are as follows:

Total revenues were 5694,414, which was a Sl7,2l7 or 2.4o/o decrease from the previous fiscal year. General
revenues increased by $7,451 or 2.7%o as properly tax revenue increased by $9,949 or 4.6%o, primarily because of
an increase in property taxes committed for collection and other revenue fell by 52,923 or 22.8Yo as investment
income decreased by $2,578. Capital grants and contributions decreased by 522,225 or 67.5Vo as educational
grants decreased from $21,869 to zero as funding for North High construction was completed.

Total expenses were 5693,649, which was a $6,190 or 0.9%o ìncrease from the previous fiscal year. While there
were modest increases in most functions due to increased personnel costs, health and human service expenses

decreased by $4,436 or 17.l%o because grants to sundry City departments were decreased from the prior year and

community development expenses decreased by $3,527 or 44.5%o as grants decreased.

FY 2012 Expenses and Program Revenues- Governmental Activities

$450,000

$400,000

$350,000

$300,000

$2s0,000

$200,000

$ 1s0,000

$ 100,000

$s0,000

$0

! Expenses

I Program Revenues
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crrY oF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

FY 2012 Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

lntergovernmental

revenues

(unrestricted) Other

s.23% r.42%

Charges for
servlces

5.28%

M otor vehicle

excise taxes

r.'7t%

Operating grants
L and contributions

52.35V.

Capital grants and

contributions

t.s4%

Business-type activities - Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $979. Factors contributing
to these results are as follows:

o The water fund had operating income of $5,511 and had an increase in net assets of $2,584. This follows
the previous year's $499 increase in net assets with an operating income of 54,254.

o The sewer fund had an operating income of $1,579 compared with a loss of $119 in the previous year. Net
assets decreased by $405, which follows the previous year's $2,879 decrease.

¡ The airport fund transferred its remaining 5I,322 in net assets to the general and special revenue funds as it
was sold to the Massachusetts Port Authority (Massport).

o The golf course fund (nonmajor) had an operating loss of $47. Net assets increased by $121.
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CITY OF WORCBSTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Jlune30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

FY 2012 Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities

FY 2012 Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
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25,000

20,000
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s,000
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Í
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95.88%
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSBTTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Jtne 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds - The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on the near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal year.

At the end of fiscal2012, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $66,103 a

decrease of $15,382 or 78.9o/o from fiscal 2011. Fund balance includes $13,918 of non-spendable amounts
contained in nonexpendable permanent funds and $25,520 of unassigned general fund balance available for
spending at the City's discretion. The nonmajor capital projects funds def,rcit of $34,804 will be funded in future
fiscal years through bond proceeds, state and federal grants and other available funds and the $882 DCU Center
def,rcit in the special revenue fund will be funded by charges for services. The remaining fund balance has

$33,293 restricted for specific purposes or by federal or state grants, 512,034 of funds committed for debt service
and $17 ,023 of funds committed in reserve for appropriation accounts by state law or City preference.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal 201 2 unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was 525,520 or 4.4o/o of total general fund revenues. During fiscal 2012 the City's general fund
balance increased by $8,136 or 43.2o/o. Total revenues exceeded expenditures by $I9,I42, while transfers out
exceeded transfers in by $ 1 1 ,485. The general fund also received a premium on the issuance of bonds of $479.

CitySquare had a fund balance of $3,108 at the end of fiscal 2072, a94,697 or 60.2%o decrease from the previous
year. During the year $6,845 of bonds were issued and $3,657 of intergovernmental revenue was received while
there was also interest income of $43. Project expenditures totaled $15,192.

The debt service fund had a fund balance of $12,034 at the end of fiscal 2012, a $2,160 or 27.8%o increase from
the previous year. During the year $1,575 in tax revenue was received and there were $13,903 net transfers in
from the general fund. Debt service expenditures were $13,318.

School grants had a fund balance of $7,878 at the end of fiscal 2072, a $932 or 10.6% decrease from the previous
year. Intergovernmentalrevenue of 547,616 wasreceivedduringtheyear, a$13,217 or27.7%odecreasefromthe
prior year as well as $348 in donations. Total expenditures were 549,374 an $8,778 or 15.7%o decrease from the
prior year.

Other governmental funds had a fund balance of $16,118 at the end of fiscal2012, a $20,050 or 55.4Yo decrease

from the previous year. The capital projects funds fund balance decreased by 525,378 as expenditures of
$53,964exceededrevenuesof $5,479,nettransfersinof $183 andissuanceof bonds of $23,023. Specialrevenue
funds increased by $5,61 3 as expenditures of $5 8,1 04 were exceeded by revenues of $63,275 and net transfers in
of 5442. Permanent funds decreased by $284 as investment losses of ($ 1 79), donations of $69 and transfers in of
S1 were exceededby expenditures of$175.

Enterprise funds - The City's enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements (business-type activities), but in more detail.
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crTY oF woRcBSTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Jtne 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Net assets of the enterprise funds at the end of fiscal 2012 loTaled 598,632. This was a 5919 increase from the
previous year. The water fund had an increase of $2,584 while the sewer fund had a decrease of ($405), the golf
course fund (nonmajor) had an increase of $122 and the airport had a decrease of ($1,322) as the fund was closed
out with the sale to Massport. Unrestricted net assets consisted of $1,578 in the water fund, $9,329 in the sewer
and ($131) in the golf course fund (nonmajor). Other factors concerning the finances of these four funds have
been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City's final general fund revenue budget was 52,152 higher than the original amount. The estimate for
property taxes was increased by $910 as additional assessments were added. Also, the estimate for state aid was
increased by $2,142 as more funding was provided in a supplemental state budget. The estimate for school
related Federal Medicare was reduced by $900 to match the prior year actual.

The final budget and actual for transfers-in increased from the original budget by $2,707 . Some of the proceeds
from the sale of the airport were placed in reserve accounts classified as special revenue on a budgetary basis.
However, due to GASB 54 these proceeds ($3,150) have been reclassified to the general fund on a GAAP basis
(refer to page I02). Additionally another $430 was transferred into the general fund from the remaining airport
fund balance as well as $801 from the Water Fund as repayment from prior year subsidies during the year. There
were also the normal unbudgeted transfers in from the special revenue fund during the year. The original budget
also contained a $1,485 transfer in from an emergency stabilization reserve (reclassified to the general fund on a
GAAP basis) that was not needed.

The final general fund expenditure budget was $1,520 higher than the original. There were several areas of
change during the year. The largest was a reduction in the health insurance budget of $3,925 that alleviated the
need for the above mentioned transfer from the emergency stabilization reserve and was also transferred into
other accounts to eliminate deficits in other general fund budgeted accounts and to other funds as well. There
was also a 5694 reduction in the DCU budget, which was transferred to related DCU accounts in the special
revenue fund. The police budget increased by $1,918 from the original with $1,618 going to fund overtime, $100
to ordinary maintenance and $200 to capital. The public works budget increased by $769 as an additional $350
went to street lighting and $390 to snow removal. The manager's budget increased by $763 with $307 being
added to the salary account and $455 added to ordinary maintenance. The technical services budget was
increased by $396 with $350 of it going to capital. Finally, the parks ordinary maintenance budget was increased
by $333 during the year.

The f,rnal budget and actual for transfers-out increased from the original budget by $1,564, which consisted
primarily of the above mentioned transfers from the DCU account and the health insurance account.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

J:une 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

The general fund balance had a budgetary basis increase of $12,785 during the year, which was on top of a

$3,711 increase in the prior year and the $5,240 the year before and ended the year with a balance of $27,044.
This increase can be traced to the above mentioned increase from the originally budgeted transfers-in as well as

positive expenditure and revenue budget budgetary variances. There was $2,274 in positive expenditure budget
variances that were fairly evenly spread with no one category standing out. There was $7,846 in positive revenue
variances inclusive of premium on loans with a $2,799 positive variance in property tax collections primarily
because of effective collection of tax title revenues. Motor vehicle excise collections were $949 above the budget
as this category was conservatively estimated. Inspectional seryices continued to collect revenue in excess of the
budget with an $884 surplus in fiscal 2012. The estimate for school related Federal Medicare was reduced to
match the prior year actual however revenue came in at $826 above the new estimate, which was fairly close to
the original estimate. Lastly, miscellaneous revenue was $664 above the budget as prior year reversions were
higher than expected. The only large negative variance was in investment earnings, which was $200 below the
budget.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets - The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2012 amounted to $819,325. This includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings,
equipment and other, rolling equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress. The total increase in the
City's investment in capital assets for the current year was $45,837 or 5.9Yo. Governmental activities increased
by $38,037 or 6.8%o and business-type activities increased by $7,800 or 3.7Yo.

Major capital asset events during the current hscal year included the following:

o Streets and sidewalks were improved with costs amounting to $l 1,986.

. The CitySquare project had expenditures of $I5,I92 as the first phase of demolition of existing structures
was completed. Construction is nearly complete on an office tower and a second building is set to be
completed in2013. Total project expenditures to date have been 547,867.

. The North High School construction project, which has been a multi-year project was completed during the
year with expenditures of $6,599 totaling $63,124 to date.

. Expenditures for parks improvement projects totaled $4,904 during the year,

. Expenditures during the year for rehabilitation of public buildings were $19,436 with the majority of it
going towards energy improvements.

o Resources were allocated during the year to business-type building, infrastructure and other capital asset

additions costing 517,739. Of this amount, $10,547 was for sewer projects, 57,125 for water projects, and

$67 was spent on golf course improvements. Additionally, business-type entities received $1,838 in capital
donations from owners of subdivisions.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACIIUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Jtne 30,2012

(Lr thousands of dollars)

The following table summarizes the City's capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Capital assets

(net of accumulated depreciation)
Business-type

activities Total
2012 20tt 2012 20tt 2012 20tt

t¿nd $ 20,489 W óJ61 5J6l ,6,6s0 ,s,4?7
Buildings 360,191 310,223 26,914 26,650 387,105 336,813
Improvements, other than buildings 27,079 26,959 21,019 26,959
Equipment and othe¡ 2,497 2,098 584 419 3,081 2,517

Rolling equipment 5,841 5,552 4,239 2,979 10,080 8,531

lnfrastructure 105,595 95,351 176,280 173,469 281,875 268,826

Construction in progress 76,369 99,519 1,086 4,786 83,455 104,305

Total $ 598,061 560,024 22'1,264 213,464 8t9,32s 1'13,488:::::

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note 8 on pages 70 through 73 of this report.

Long-term debt - At the end of the current fiscal year the City of Worcester had total long-term debt
outstanding of $5 85,429, a decrease of 57 ,444 or I.3%o from the prior fiscal year. With the exception of the notes
payable, the full faith and credit of the City back this entire amount.

Long-term debt
Governmental Business-type

activities âctivit¡es Total
2012 20tt 2012 20tt 2012 20tt

General obligation bonds S -55J39 46130, 1æJ0t t 52c.2 îrr,340 587,594
Notes payable 4,396 4,505 1,693 774 6,089 5,219

rotal $ 

-ot22l_ 
_^rr,*l_ _trtA*_ _rrrplS_ _ttt,^*_ _ttr,"t_

On July 12,2011, the City issued $16,755 of general obligation refunding bonds. On November 1,2011 the City
issued $33,263 of general obligation bonds. The proceeds consisted of $23,023 for governmental activities and
$10,240 for business-type activities. Additionally, on June 1, 2012The City issued S6,845 of general obligation
bonds.

In relation to the above debt the City maintained credit ratings of A1 from Moody's Investors Service, A- from
Standard and Poors and AA- from Fitch Ratings.

Also during the year the City received a $965 note payable to the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement
Trust.

Governmeltal
activities
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CITY OF WORCESTBR, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Jtne 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Massachusetts General Law subjects the City to a dual-level general debt limit: the normal debt limit and double
debt limit. Such limits are equal to 5o/o and l)Yo, respectively, of the valuation of taxable property in the City as

last equalized by the Commonwealth's Department of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the normal debt
limit without state approval. Authorizations under the double debt limit, however, require the approval of a board
comprised of the state Auditor, state Treasurer, Attorney General and Director of Accounts. Additionally, certain
categories of general obligation debt are exempt from the debt limit but subject to other limitations.

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in note 11 beginning on page 75 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

The City has a diverse economy that has significant employment in the education and health care sectors, which
tend to stand up well during economic downturns. According to the U.S. Department of Labor, the City's
unemployment rate was 8.4%o at June 30, 2012, compared with a 10.0% rate that existed a year earlier. This
compares with June 30,2012 unemployment rates of 6.3Yo in Massachusetts and 8.4%o nalionally.

A recent study by Colliers International reported that as of June 30,2012, a sample of 1 .81 million square feet of
office space in Worcester was 82.6Yo occupied, with26.l thousand square feet becomingvacant during the first
half of calendar year 2012.

Property values increased from $10,857,000 in f,rscal 2011 to $11,278,000, or 3.9o/o, infiscal2012.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's f,rnances for interested parties.

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional furancial
information should be addressed to the Office of the City Auditor, 455 Main Street, Room 102, Worcester,
Massachusetts 01608.
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Bxhibit I
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Net Assets

Iune30,2012

Component units

Primary government
Governmental Business-type

activities activities Total

Worcester
Redevelopment

Authority

117,424
19,069

74,374
2,90s

1,361,259

29,386,312

Upper
Blackstone

'Water

Pollution
Abatement

District

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Receivables (net):

Property taxes
Tax and utility liens
Motor vehicle excise taxes
Charges for services
Special assessments
Departmental
Intergovemmental
Other

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, net ofaccumulated

depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Retainage payable
Other liabilitìes
Tanporary notes payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net assets:
lnvested in capital assets, net of

related debt
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable permanent fu nds
Expendable permanent fu nds
State and federal grants
Other specific purposes

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

s t20,728,208
59,429,989
13,191,755

5,551,31 0
3,141,292
2,228,465

2,592,016
1,797,356

7'7,013,231
2,246,082

96,858,205

501,202,663

885,980,572

7,693,232
16,268,728

2,048,230

11,955,472
408,456

13,246,302

208,018,067

t28,42t,440
75,698,7r7
13,191,755

5,55 1,310
5,189,522
2,228,465

11,955,472
3,000,472
1,797 ,356

'77,013,231

2,246,082
1 1 0,1 04,507

709,220,730

7,254,514

3,620,998

51 r,660

7,612,781
t,091,242

34,01 1 ,03 1

1 58, I 39,1 98

259,638.487 1,145,619,059

49,705,992
16,851,994
3,023,934
9,788,845

72,313,000

6t,t08,977
737,826,964

9s0,619,706

376,631,777

13,918,49'7
111,816

17,931,559
8,414,311

(222,008,607)

194,999,353

30,961,343 212,241,424

47,327,0t7
15,223,6s1
2,406,523
9,788,845

48,r 30,000

48,332,559
618,404,841

789,6t3,436

288:77s,803

13,918,497
111,816

t7,931,559
8,414,311

(232,784,850)

s 96,367,136

2,378,975
|,628,343

617,411

24,t83,000

12,776,418
119,422,123

161,006,270

87,8ss,9'74

10,776,243

98,632,217

102,803
1,1 15,881

30,829

6,050,783
|,173,661

8,473,957

27,195,153

3,427,746
2,t32,10'l

42t,752

6,1 88,554
t76,128,527

188,298,ó86

19,368,234

(4,707,767)

22,487,386

4,s74,s04

23,942,738

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Functions/programs

CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement ol Activities

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2012

Prosram revenues
Operating

Charges for grants and
services contributions

Capital
grants and

contributions

Exhibit 2

Net
(expense)/
revenue

Primary government:

Govemmental activities :

General govemment

Public safety

Health and human services
Education
Public works
Culture and rec¡eation

Community development
Redevelopment

Interest on debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Wate¡
Sewer
Golf course (nonmajor)

Total business-type acti vities

Total prirnary government

Component units:
Worcester Redevelopment

Authority
Upper Blackstone \Vater

Pollution Abatement District

Total component units

23,967,697

693,648,ss6 36,675,086

24,387,855 27,002,295
35,284,0'12 34,442,9'13
t,246,490 1,126,816

60,918,417 62,s72,084

24,409,224 t9,866,72'7

$ 26,482,509 20,369,875

- (1,570,137)

t,'797,598 (2,744,899)

1,79'.1 ,598 (4,3 r 5,036)

Expenses

$ 2t,552,t34
126,487,686
20,596,850

435,52s,878
39,583,66s
21,s3s,498
4,399,148

3,922,'798

rs,932,940
1,059,2s8

2,640,978
11,916,826

1,202,286

3,280,997

5,386,646

17,926,1ts
322,686,69t

I,l 55,300

t,529,883
5,610,83 1

r,446,000
4,515,702

363,s38,t6s

595,516

9,788,602
307,048

10,691,166

1 ,614,0'71
1,07'7,629

(14,348,339)
(104,s72,584)

(t,6t1,477)
(1 10,198,209)
(16,722,937)
( 18,496,281)

1,211,683

1,446,000
(t9,4st,99s)

(282,744,t39)

4,228,s11
236,530

(119,674)

2,691,700 4,345,36'7

s 754,566,973 99,247,170 363,538,165 13,382,866 (278,398,772)

$ 2,0'13,285 503,148

(Continued)
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 2
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year ended June30,2012

Primary Government Component Units

Governmental
Activities

Business-

Type
Activities Total

'Worcester

Redevelopment
Authority

Upper
Blackstone

Water Pollution
Abatement

District
Changes in net assets:

Net (expense) revenue (from
previous page)

General revenues:

P¡operty taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes

Other taxes and in-lieu pal.rnents

Penalties and interest on taxes

Intergovemmental revenues
(unrestricted)
Investment eamings (loss)

Miscellaneous

Transfers (net)

Total general revenues

and transfers (net)

Contributions to pennanent funds

Sub{otal

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

$ (282,744,139) 4,34s,367 (278,398,772) (t,570,137) (2,744,899)

22s,4s9,980
r 1,866,301

5,689,280
2,871,626

36,297,9'70
(3s,22r)

1,3s8,686

3,366,314

286,874,936

68,491

286,943,427

4,199,288

92,167,848

s 96,367,136

(3,366,3t4)

(3,366,314)

225,459,980
I 1,866,301

s,689,280
2,871,626

36,29't,970
(3s,221)

1,358,686

283,508,622

68,491

614 181,830

(3,366,314) 283,s77,tt3

979,053 5,178,341

97 ,6s3,r64 189 ,821 ,012

98,632,217 t94,999,353

I 8 1,830

614 t 8 I,830

(1,s69,s23) (2,s63,069)

24,056,909 26,505,807

22,487,386 23,942,738

614

(Concluded)
See accompanying notes to basic hnancial statements.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Balance Sheet

Govemmental Funds

June 30,2012

Debt
Service

12,034,071

Other
governmental

funds

Exhibit 3

Total
governmental

funds
School
GrantsAssets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Receivables (net of allowance for

uncollectibles of $10,3 17, 162)
Due from other govemments

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Temporary loans
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and

fund balances

General Ci0Square
s 65,29t,966

1,443,802 5,489,553

15,310,439
75,508,t74

$ 157,554,381

$ 34,969,759

86,849,192
8,771,495

130,590,446

5,489,553

2,058,774
142,354
180,000

2,381,128

12,034,071 8,480,285

601,941

60t,941 6'1,021,209 r94,s94,724

1,443,802 3,t08,42s - 7,878,344
t2,034,071

25,s20,r33

26,963,93s 3,t08,425 12,034,071 7,878,344 16,118,024 66,102,799

$ 157,554,381 s,489,553 12,034,071 8,480,285 77,139,233 260,697,s23

8,287,209

t93,076

17,023,412
44,209,425
13,191,755

1,402,660
1,3 I 1,98 I

77,139,233

8,387,030
2,264,169

47,950,000
1,402,660
l,017,350

94,349,449
s9,429,989
t3,191,75s

16,713,099
7'7,013,231

260,697,s23

46,017,504
2,406,523

48,130,000
88,251,852
9,788,845

13,918,497
20,862,449
t7,023,412

(3s,686,334)

13,918,497
33,293,020
29,057,483

(1 0,166,201 )

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 4

CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

Total Fund Balances to the Statement of Net Assets

Jtne 30,2012

Total governmental fund balances (Exhibit 3) $ 66,102,799

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are

not financial resources and, therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 598,060,868

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore are

deferred in the governmental funds. 88,251,852

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of self-insured
health insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service fund are included in the governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 19,489,1.32

In the statement of net assets, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt, whereas

in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. (8,800,115)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in governmental funds:

Bonds and notes payable, net of unamofüzedpremiums (463,242,377)

OPEB (t74,376,79r)
Judgments and claims (II,097,940)
Compensated absences (13,191,319)

Landfrll closure costs (4,828,973)

Net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 1) S 96,361,136

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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crTY oF woRcEsTE& MASSACHUSETTS

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30,2012

Exhibit 5

Other Total
governmental governmental

funds fundsGeneral CitySquare
Debt

Service
School
Grants

Revenues:
Property taxes
Motor vehicle excise taxes
Other taxes and in-lieu payments
Penalties and interest on taxes
Licenses and pennits
Intergovernrnental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitu¡es
Investment ear¡ings (losses)
Donations
Contributions to pemanent funds
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General govemment
Public safety
Health and human services
Education
Public works
Culhrre and rec¡eation
Fringe benefits
Cornmunity developtrent

State and regional charges
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
T¡ansfers in
Transfers out
Premium on issuance ofbonds
Issuance ofbonds
Issuance of refunding bonds
Refunded bonds redeemed

Total other fìnancing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

s 225,500,752
tt,887 ,574
4,439,6t0
2,87t,626
5,2t0,469

321,7t9,434
5,8t3,754
2,845,336

99,947

1 ,3 18,000

581,706,502

14,598,537
7'7 ,8t1,'7 50

763,990
222,922,770

I 8,030,1 9s
8,123,080

143,721,8t4

29,s2s,60s

26,643,384
20,423,527

562,564,652

19,141,850

3,926,618
(1s,41 1,358)

478,707

3,657,455

42,588

44,844,666
19,174,073

(177,7s6)
4,329,656

68,491
405,t21

68,644,25r

14,05 1,163
16,194,692
l'7,024,tt0
26,837,73s
21,849,773

8,634,84s

4,399,r48

1,786,426
r,46s,411

112,243,303

(43,s99,0s2)

8,791,016
(8, I 6s,280)

23,022,565
7,422,000

(7,s21,000)

225,500,752
11,88'7,574
6,015,240
2,871,626
5,2t0,469

417,837 ,514
24,987,827

2,845,336
(3s,22t)

4,677,247
68,491

1,723,t21

703,s89,976

28,649,100
94,006,442
17,788,r 00

299,r34,375
55,072,089
t6,757925

t43,'721,814
4,399,148

29,525,605

36,74'7,275
26,889,s89

1,s75,630

4t,6ts,959

341,59t

3,700,043 1,5't5,630 47,963,550

15,192,r21
49,373,870

15,t92,t21

(tl,492,078)

(49,3s7)

6,845,000

8,317,46s
5,000,651

13,318,1 16

(rr,742,486)

14,118,623
(2 1 6,000)

49,3'73,8'10

(1,410,320)

5 1 8,093
(3e,43s)

7s2,692,062

(49,t02,086)

27,305,t13
(23,832,073)

478,707
29,867,s6s

1,422,000
(7,52 1,000)

(11,005,973) 6,795,643 t3,902,623

8,135,877 (4,696,435) 2,t60,137

18,828,058 7,804,860

$ 26,963,935 3,108,425

9.873.934

478,658 23,549,361 33,720,312

(931,662) (20,049,691) (1s,38t,774)

8,810,006 36,167,715 81,484,573

12,034,0'11 7,878,344 16,118,024 66,102,799

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expendìtures

and Changes in Fund Balances of Govemmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30,2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 5)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement ofactivities the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the

amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital outlays
Capital donations
Depreciation

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This amount represents

the net change in deferred revenue.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
govemmental funds, while the repayrnent of the principal of long-term debt

consumes the current financial resources of govemmental funds. Neither

transaction, however, has any impact on net assets. Also, govemmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items

when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement ofactivities. These amounts represent the related activity of
the current period:

Issuance ofbonds
Transfer of golf course (nonmajor) debt
Bond maturities
Amortization of bond premiums

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt

whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This

amount represents the net change in accrued interest payable

An intemal service fund is used by management to charge the cost of selÊ

insured health insurance to individual funds. The activity of the intemal service

fund is reported with govemmental funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. These amounts represent the net change:

OPEB
Judgments and claims
Compensated absences

Landfill closure and postclosure care

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 2)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Exhibit 6

$ (1s,381,774)

64,t97,789
1,554,934

(27 ,7 rs,679)

(10,3ts,047)

(29,867,s6s)
(106,727)

36,747,275
78,592

2,016,261

3,521,017

(1 8,348,553)
20,994

(246,887)
(r,9ss,342)

$ 4,199,288
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Exhibit 7
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2012

Governmental
activities"ïo,,-4o. tJf;i::t

\ilater Sewer Airport Course Totals Fund

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

I-and
Buildings
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Equipment and other
Rolling equipment

læss accumulated
depreciation

Capital assets, net

Total assets

Liabilities:
Cunent liabilìties:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Retainage payable
Judgmarts and claims
Compensated absences
Temporary loans
Other
Bonds and notes payable

Total cunent liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities :

Judgments and claims
Compensated absences
OPEB payable
Other
Bonds and notes payable

Total noncurrent
liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Invested in capital assets,

net ofrelated debt
I Jnrestricted

$ 3,891,132 3,754,609
6,094,178 10,t07,544
4,641,649 9,770,509

14,626,9s9 23,632,662

7,693,232
16,268,728
14,412,1s8

114,497 38,374,1 18 27,222,r8t

6,044,000
4t,068,277

144,892,r41
9t3,152
402,918

2,483,494

('7'7,74s,261)

l 18,058,721

132,685,680

r,351,379
912,949
222,9t0
t71,357
381,354

10,023,000
2,202

8,24t,721

21,306,872

1,040,002
I 18,546

2,747,794
6,661

s7,925,600

61,838,603

83,145,4'ts

47,962,578
1,577,627

$ 49,540,20s

1 16,s00
4,302,31s

165,257,047
6,170,605

5ts,744
5,767,035

(80,724,887)

101,404,359

t2s,037,02r

980,105
702,666
394,501
83,008

1 78,57 l
14,135,000

3,360
3,553,030

20,030,241

129,858
38,5 l4

1,649,0s2
36,34t

53,950,712

55,804,537

1s,834,778

39,873,101
9,329,142

49,202,243

47,49t
67,006

965,493
1,709,730

2,04s

(8'7s,979)

1,80 1,289

1,915,786

47,491
12,728

8,815
25,000

1s3,000

247,034

4,171
104,812

1,670,000

1,118,983

2,026,017

20,295
( 1 30,s26)

(1 10,23 1)

6,1 60,500
46,336,085

311,858,918
7,085,802

918,662
8,250,529

(ts9,346,t27)

221,264,369

2s9,638,487

2,318,97s
t,628,343

617,411
2s4,36s
568,'t40

24,183,000
5,562

11,947,7 51

41,584,t4'l

1,169,860
161,231

4,501,658
43,002

113,546,372

119,422,123

16t,006,270

87,855,974
10,'776,243

98,632,2t'7

26,378,1s9

843,422

2'7,222,18t

1,309,s 13
6,423,536

7,'733,049

'7,'t33,049

t9,489,132

19,489,r32Total net assets (defìcit)

See accornpanying notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

33,814,17s

5,429,347

18,4'Ì7,s22
3,t75,289
5,782,027

32,864,185

1,578,788

6,961

288,9'.70

719,346
29,420

136,500

r,t74,236

(47,420)

1 5,r06,46 I

23,448,685
s,198,394

11,'776,374

55,529,914

7,042,170

Exhibit I

Governmental
activities
Internal
Seryice
Fund

54,046,396
24,46s,010

75,063,24s

75,063,245

3,448,16t

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Fees
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

0perating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Benefit payments
Ordinary maintenance
Indirect costs
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues
(expenses):

Intergovemmental
Investment income
Inte¡est expense

Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before
capital donations
and transfers

Capital donations
Transfèrs in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

- 59,520,125

1,t26,097 1,126,097
719 1,925,862

1,126,816 62,572,084 78,511,406

- 853,693

(72,2s4) (s,388,503)

(72,2s4) (4,534,8 l0)

72,856

72,856

3,s21,0r7

(2,896,362) (2,419,887)

(2,049,630) (2,412,926)

3,46t,t72 (834,138)

76'7,339 1,070,668

(r,644,s57) (641,ß;) 0,321,7s;)

(119,674)

264,588
(23,558)

2,507,360

1,838,007
264,588

(3,630,902)

2,s83,9s4 (404,s02) (1,321,7ss) r2t,3s6 979,0s3 3,s2t,0r7

46,956,251 49,606,745 1,32r,755 (23r,587) 9'1,653,164 15,968,115

s 49,540,205 49,202,243 - (r 10,231) 98,632,211 19,489,132

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

#o"u"o"o"ïno"*4o'
Water Sewer Äirport Course Totals

$ 25,705,950

9,388,144

4,251,817
1,993,685
5,857,847

21,491,493

5,5 l 0,802

846,132

1,29634s 628,798

27,002,295 34,442,9'73

-t -t



Exhibit 9
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSET"TS

Statemeut ofCash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2012

Business-tyDe activities

M
Nonmajor

Golf
Course

Governmental
activities
lnternal
Senice
FundSewer Airport Totâls

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts ftom customeß
Paymeots for interfund sewice provided
Pa)ments to suppliers
Pa)ments to employees

Net cash provided (used)

by opemting activities
Cash flows from noncâpital

fìnancing activities:
Tramfen in
Tmnsfers (out)

Intergovemental subsidies

Net cash provided (used) by
noncapital fi nancing activities

Cash flovs from capital and
relâted financ¡ng activities:

Issuance of capital debt
Acquisition and coßtn¡ction of

capital assels

Princþal paid on capital debt
Proceeds from sale ofairport
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and ¡elated financi¡g activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income

Net iucrease (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at begiming of year
(inctudes $3,448,390 and $7,0 13,400

reported as restricted in the Water
and Sewer funds)

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear
(includes $ó,094,178, $10,107,544 and $67,006
reported as resficted in the Water, Sewer

and Golf Cou¡se [nomajor] fuods)

Reconciliation of operating income
to net cash prov¡ded (used) by
operating åctivities:

Opemting hrcorne (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating incorne
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities not requiring

cunent expenditure of cash:

Depreciation expense

Increase in OPEB payable

Changes in assets and liabilities requiring
cunent expenditure of cash:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

(Increase) in accrued ìiabilities
Increase (decrease) in judgments and

claims payable

Increase in comperoated
absences payable

Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by

openting activities

Noncash investing, capitål and
financing activities:

Capital donatioos

s 27,46s,s33 33,811,165

(6,222,s't5) (2t,s76,11s)
(9,090,38ó) (5,321,483)

12.t52,572 6,913,567

(t,644,ss7) (64t,032)
846;132 6,96t

- 1 .126,8 t6

(40,692) (747,127)
(75,860) (28 t,694)

62,403,514 78,51 1,406

- (78,37s,076)

(28,58ó,509)
(14,769,423)

19,047 ,582

264,588
(3,630,902)

l,l6l,l83

(2,20s,t3t)

44,640,824

(r'7,s37.727)
(1 t ,269 ,032)

89 l,603
(s,406.161)

(8,680,493)

8,1 6 1,958

136.330

72,856

209,186

26,169,513

26,378,759

3,448,t6t

(r 16,552)

(t ,321,7 s5)
307,490

264,588
(2r,558)

97.995

(797,82s) (634,07t) (1,014,2ó5)

20,322.55t 24.213,273

(7.097,492) ( r 0,3ós.344)
(r8.140.07r) tt2,7'75,234)

89 I,603
(2,95t .47 t\ (2.377,9621

(7,866,483) (1,30s,267) 891,603

24|,030

r 05,000

(74,891)
(3s3;t27)

(76,728)

(400,346)

(6 1,32 1 )(239,214)

239,214

(l r6,552)

(l r 6,ss2)

(l ló,552)

3,488.264

6,491,046

$ 9,985,3 r0

$ 5,510,802

4,974,229

8,887,924

13,862,1s3

I,578,788

175,818 r5,800,002

| 14.497 23,961,960

(47,420) 7,042,170

5,851 ,847
365,544

463,238
(203,387)

151,580

ó,948
6,641,770

$ 12,1s2,572

s 767,339

5,'182,027

l4 1,088

(63 1,808)

7,026

29,655

6,791
5,334,779

6,9t3,s67

1,070,668

l3ó,500
10,630

(1,971)

256
145,415

97,995

tl,7'16,3'14
5t'7,262

(l 68,s70)
(3 l 4,884)

I 8 1,235

13,995

12,005,4t2

19.047,582

1,838,007

( l s5,s79)
(2,850,609)

(30s,643)

(3,3 l l,8l l)

I 36,330

See accompanying notes to basic flnancial st¿tements
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crTY oF woRcESTER, MÄSSACHUSETTS

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Jlune30,2072

Pension Trust
Fund (As of

December 31,
20tt)

Exhibit 10

Agency
Fund

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at fair value:
Equities
Fixed income
Pooled equities
Pooled f,rxed income
Real estate
Alternative investments

Total investments

Receivables:
Accrued interest and dividends
Intergovernmental
Receivable for securities sold
Other receivables

Total receivables

Securities lending collateral

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to student groups
Intergovernmental
Payable for securities purchased
Securities lending collateral

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Held in trust for pension benefits

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

1,882 343 39]^,002

r58,767,556
100,860,546
147,798,801
24,770,484
81,715,298

140,98I,753

654.228.438

r,004,668
493,590
20,589

875.067

2,393,9r4

35,442,360

693,947,055

289,779

2,720,518
92,632

35,442,360

39t,002

6,333
384,669

37,945,289 39t,002

656,001,766
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CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Exhibit 11

Pension Trust
Fund

(Year ended
December 31,

20tt)

32,706,347
14,526,760
I,596,702

499,176

17,321,936
152,350

(13,612,022)
(3,434,273)

(59,659)

(5,631,168)

43,686,217

64,477,915
2,127,935
2,410,536

569,245

69,585,631

(25,899,4\4)

68 1 ,901 ,1 g0

$ 656,001,7 66

Additions:
Contributions from:

Employers
Plan members
Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Reimbursements from other systems

Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest and dividends
Securities lending income
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Less: management fees
Less: borrower rebates and fees under securities lending program

Net investment earnings

Total additions

Deductions:
Benefits
Reimbursements to other systems
Refunds and transfers of plan member accounts to other systems
Administrative exp enses

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

98s3r749
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CITY OF \ilORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Jlune30,2012

(Lr thousands of dollars)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the City of Worcester (the City) are presented in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

(o) Financìal Reporlíng Entíty

The City's basic financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its component
units. The component units, discussed below, are included in the City's reporting entity because of
the significance of their operational and financial relationships with the City.

Primary Government

The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government. Legislative authority is vested in
an eleven-member City Council (the Council), of which six members are elected at-large and five are
elected from districts. The School Committee, whose members are elected biennially, has exclusive
jurisdiction over the City's public school system and appoints a superintendent to administer the
system's day-to-day affairs.

The City provides a variety of public services. All funds of the City are included in the basic
hnancial statements. The financial condition and results of operations of the City's funds are
presented as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2072, except for the City of Worcester
Contributory Retirement System (WRS), which is presented as of and for the fiscal year ended
December 31,2017.

Fiduciary tr'und Component Unit

WRS provides services almost entirely to the City. While legally separate, WRS is presented as if it
were part of the primary government.

WRS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined beneht pension plan established by the City on
Jl;rne 1.2, 1944 under Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) and is regulated by the
Massachusetts Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). WRS covers
certain eligible employees of the City and the Worcester Housing Authority.

WRS is administered by a five-member Retirement Board comprised of the City Auditor, who serves
as ex-fficio; two members elected by participants in or retired from service under WRS; a fourth
member appointed by the City Manager; and a frfth member appointed by the other members. WRS
is accounted for as a pension trust fund. Complete audited financial statements for WRS are publicly
available and can be obtained from the Retirement Office, 455 Main Street, Room 103, Worcester,
Massachusetts 01608.
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crTY oF woRcESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Discretely Presented Component UnÍts

These component units are reported in separate columns to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City but are included in the City's reporting entity because the City is f,rnancially
accountable for them. The City is financially accountable for, and is able to impose its will on these
organizations. The City appoints a voting majority of each organizalion's governing body and there
is a potential for each organization either to provide specif,rc financial benefits or to impose specif,rc
ftnancial burdens on the City. The notes to the basic f,rnancial statements pertain to the primary
government, unless otherwise indicated. A description of the discretely presented component units
and their relationship with the City follows:

o The Upper Blackstone Water Pollution Abatement District (the District) is a

special-purpose municipal corporation whose primary responsibility is to provide sewage
treatment services to participating municipalities. The District was established under
Chapter 752 of the Acts of 1968 of the Commonwealth. The District's area of potential service
includes the City of Worcester, the Towns of Auburn, Boylston, Holden, Leicester, Millbury,
Oxford, Paxton, Rutland, Shrewsbury, and West Boylston and all the sewer districts
representing a portion of any of the above towns. The City of Worcester and the Towns of
Auburn, Holden, Millbury, Rutland, West Boylston, and the Cherry Valley Sewer District of
Leicester are the members of the District. The District is governedby a board of directors
comprised of residents of the member governments. Each member government appoints one
board member, with the City appointing a sufficient number of board members to have a
majority vote. Complete financial statements for the District can be obtained from the
District's adminístrative offices at Route 20, Millbury, Massachusetts 01521 .

e The Worcester Redevelopment Authority (WRA) was organized under state law as a body
corporate and politic having the authority to oversee and direct the City's redevelopment
activities. WRA exercises its redevelopment powers through a hve-member board, of which
four members are appointed without restriction by the City Manager. Complete financial
statements can be obtained from the Office of Budget and Operational Analysis, Chief
Financial Officer, Worcester Redevelopment Authority, 455 Main Street, Worcester,
Massachusetts 01608.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, M.A.SSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Jlune30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

Joint Venture

Municipal joint ventures pool resources to share the costs, risks, and rewards of providing services to
their participants, the general public or others. The City is a participant in a joint venture to operate
the Worcester Regional Transit Authority (WRTA), a component unit of the Commonwealth.
Created in 1974 as a body corporate and politic and political subdivision of the Commonwealth,
WRTA provides rapid transit and other mass transportation services to the City and 36 other
municipalities within its jurisdiction. Each participating municipality is represented by one member
on WRTA's governing board. The City's representative is appointed by the City Manager. While the
level of service provided to each member affects the weight of each member's vote, the City's vote
does not constitute a voting majority. The City is indirectly liable for debt and other expenses
incurred by WRTA. The City's paid assessment from WRTA for fiscal 2012 amounted to 52,617,
which represented approximately 75% of the total of such assessments on all participating cities and
towns. Complete financial statements for WRTA can be obtained from WRTA's administrative
ofhces at287 Grove Street, Worcester, Massachusetts 01605.

Related Organization

The City Manager is responsible for appointing four out of five board members to the Worcester
Housing Authority subject to confrmation by the City Council. However, the City's accountability
for this organization does not extend beyond making these appointments.

(b) Government-Wìde and Fund Fínancìal Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the nonflrduciary activities of
the primary government and it's discretely presented component units. Governmental activities,
which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-t1pe activities, which rely for the most part on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially acc ountable.

The statement of activities presents both the gross and net cost per functional category. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function and program revenues must
be directly associated with that function. Program revenues include charges to customers or
applicants who purchase goods, services, or privileges as well as grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting operational or capital requirements of the function. Other revenue sources, such
as taxes and investment eamings not properly included among program revenues, are reported as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds. However, f,rduciary funds are not included in government-wide statements since these assets
are held for the benefit of private parties and pension participants and cannot be used to satis$z
obligations of the primary government. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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crTY oF WoRCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Jlune30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

(c) Measurement Focus, Basís of Accounting, and Finøncial Statement Presentation

The government-wide f,rnancial statements and the proprietary, fiduciary, and component unit
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Except for the agency fund (a f,rduciary fund), revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Agency funds do not present the results of
operations or have a measurement focus. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met.

Employer contributions to the pension trust fund are recognized as revenue and recorded as a
receivable when appropriated by the participating employers. Member and other contributions are
recognized when due. Benefits and refunds to plan members and benehciaries are recognized as
expenses when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the curent financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they
are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available if they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Revenues
not considered available are recorded as deferred revenues.

The City also reports proprietary funds. The focus in proprietary funds is upon determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The City's discretely
presented component units, along with the water, sewer, airport, and golf course (nonmajor)
enterprises, fit into this category. The accounting principles used are similar to those used for private
sector businesses. The City and its component units apply to these funds accounting standards and
interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued on or before November 30,1989,
unless those principles conflict with or contradict pronouncements of GASB, After such date, the
City follows GASB pronouncements.

The City applies the susceptible-to-accrual criteria to intergovernmental revenues. In applying the
susceptible-to-accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, there are essentially two types of
revenues. In one, moneys must be expended for a specific purpose or project before any amounts
will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized as expenditures are incurred. In the other,
moneys are virtually unrestricted and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with
prescribed requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues when cash is received, or earlier
if the susceptible-to-accrual criteria are met. State aid is accrued as revenue in the year that the funds
are appropriated by the Commonwealth.

Property taxes and motor vehicle excise taxes are recorded as revenue in the year for which the taxes
have been levied, provided they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Investment income is
recorded as earned. Other revenues are recorded when received in cash because they are generally
not measurable until actually received.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

J:une30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred except for (1) interest on general obligation
debt, which is recorded when due; and (2) claims and judgments (including self-insurance),
compensated absences and landfrll closure and postclosure care costs, all of which are recorded as
expenditures to the extent that they have been paid or are expected to be paid with expendable
available hnancial resources.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

o General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the City and is used to
account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund.

o CitySquare Fund - The CitySquare fund was established to account for the City's share of
the financial resources used for the construction of the CitySquare project.

o Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund was established to reduce the impact of debt
service costs on future budgets. The original funding source was from the Massachusetts
School Building Authority (MSBA) from retroactive reimbursement for school construction
costs, and has since been expanded to include funding for CitySquare, North High School and
Airport debt service.

o School Grants Fund - The school grants fund accounts for school programs funded by
grants.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent
funds that arc aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the
goverimental funds hnancial statements. The following describes the general use of these fund
types:

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than capital projects.

CapÍtal projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources thal are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related
outflows financed by proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private
organizalions, or other governments.

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that
only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the government's programs
and benefit the government or its citizenry.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

o Water Fund - The water fund is used to account for the utility that purifies and distributes
water to city users.
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CITY OF WORCESTBR, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Jlune 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

¡ Sewer Fund - The sewer fund is used to account for the utility that treats sewerage and storm
water run-off in the city.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

o Pension Trust Fund - The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of V/RS,
which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees.

o Agency Fund - The agency fund is used to account for student activity funds.

The City also uses an internal service fund to account for self-insured health costs. Although the fund
is presented in a separate column in the accompanying financial statements, it is not considered a
major fund.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are other charges between the water, sewer, and
golf course (nonmajor) functions and other functions. These charges are reflected as charges to the
proprietary funds and expense credits to the servicing functions.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. General revenues are those that cannot be associated
directly with program activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues are charges for services, fees, facility rental, and miscellaneous operating revenues.
Operating expenses of these funds are salaries and benefits, ordinary maintenance, indirect costs, and
depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this defrnition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

(d) Assets, Liabilítíes, Net Assets and Fund Balances

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents consist of highly liquid financial
instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

Basis of Investment Valuation

Investments are stated at fair value. Fair values are based on quotations from a national securities
exchange except for alternative investments and real estate funds, for which fair value is determined
through estimates by fund managers.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

The City's alternative investments are recorded atfatr market value as determined in good faith by
the generalpartners of the alternative investment firms. The City's investments inreal estate funds
are recorded at fair value, based on independent third party appraisals as reported by the investment
managers of the funds. As there is no readily available market for these investments, estimated
values may differ significantly from the values that may be realized upon liquidation.

Basis of Investment Transactions

Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the trade date. Transactions unsettled as of
year-end are recorded as payables for securities purchased and as receivables for securities sold.

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values levied (assessed) and liened as of each
January 1 in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws. By law, all taxable property in the
Commonwealth must be assessed al 100%o of fair cash value. Once levied, these taxes are recorded
as receivables, net of estimated uncollectibles. Lr the governmental funds financial statements
property tax revenues have been recorded using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
described in note 1(c). The government-wide financial statements recognize property tax revenue
when taxes are levied net of estimated uncollectibles.

The City bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basis. Taxes must be billed at least
30 days prior to their due date. The scheduled due dates for quarterly tax billings are August I,
November 1, February 1 and May 1. Overdue property taxes are subject to interest and penalties. The
City has an ultimate right to foreclose on properties for which taxes have not been paid.

A statewide tax limitation statute known as "Proposition 2-112" limits the property tax levy to an
amount equal to 2-ll2% of the value of all taxable property in the City. A secondary limitation is that
no levy in any fiscal year may exceed the preceding year's allowable tax levy by more than 2-ll2%o,
plus taxes levied on certain property newly added to the tax rolls. Certain Proposition 2-Il2 taxing
limitations can be overridden by a City-wide referendum vote.

Inventory

The cost of supplies and other inventoriable items are recorded as an expenditure at the time of
purchase þurchase method). No signihcant inventory balances were on hand at June 30, 2012, and
therefore are not reported.
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(In thousands of dollars)

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements other than
buildings, rolling equipment, equipment and other, treatment facilities and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, streets, sidewalks, and drainage systems), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The
City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $50 and an estimated
useful life in excess of two years. The WRA and District define capital assets as assets with an
estimated useful life in excess of one year, with no minimum capi|alization threshold dollar value.
These assets are valued at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. Cost
includes not only purchase price or construction cost, but also ancillary charges necessary to place
the asset in its intended location and condition for use. Net interest costs related to construction
projects, for business-type activities, is capitalized during the construction period if material. Such
costs were not considered material during fiscal 2012. Donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair value at the time received. Capital assets held by the discretely presented component
units are accounted for in the applicable component unit. Depreciation is provided by the City on a
straightJine basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are 5 to l0 years for vehicles
and equipment, 40 years for facilities and 50 years for infrastructure. Depreciation is provided by the
WRA on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are 10 to 20 years

for land improvements, 39 years for buildings and improvements and 3 to 5 years for equipment.
Depreciation is provided by the District on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, which are 3 to 20 years for equipment and other and 20 to 50 years for facilities.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets' lives are not capitalized.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement, termination, or
death, eligible employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave (subject to certain
limitations) at specified payment rates established by contract, regulation, or policy. The cost of
compensated absences for employees is recorded as earned in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if it
has matured (i.e., come due for payment). To the extent it is probable that unused sick days will
result in termination payments, a liability based on established payment rates and the City's past
experience in making such termination payments, adjusted for other current factors and expectations,
has been recorded.

Net Assets and Fund Balances

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are specifìed by outside parties for a specific
future use. The City reports the following net asset restrictions:

"Nonexpendable permanent funds" represents amounts held in trust for which only investment
earnings may be expended.
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(In thousands of dollars)

"Expendable permanent funds" represents amounts held in trust whereby expenditures are subject to
various trust agreements.

"State and federal grants" represents restrictions placed on assets from state and federal granting
agencies.

"Other specific purposes" represents restrictions placed on assets other than from state and federal
granting agencies.

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

"Nonspendabls" - represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable
form (i.e., prepaid amounts) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact (i.e., principal of permanent fund).

"Restricted" - represents amounts that can be spent only for specif,rc purposes because of
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.

"Committed" - represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal
action of City Council, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City.
Committed amounts may be established, modified, or rescinded only through actions approved by
City Council.

"Assigned" - represents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but are intended to be used for specific purposes.

"Unassigned" represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual
fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assigned fund
balance amounts.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned.

The City adopted a general fund balance policy in November 2006. It is the City's policy to achieve
unassigned general fund balance equal to or greater than 5-percent of general fund revenues.

Securities Lending Transactions

Collateral received on securities lending transactions is reported as an asset with a corresponding
liability to the borrower. The underlying securities lent to the borrower under these transactions are
reported as investments. Borrower rebates and administrative fees are reported as expenses; interest
and dividends on the underlying securities and related collateral are reported as revenues.
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(In thousands of dollars)

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal regulations require the City to place final covers on its municipal solid waste
landfill (MSWLF) sites when such sites stop accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions at the sites for 30 years after closure. The City determines its liability
related to closure and postclosure care for all MSWLFs based on landf,rll capacity used to date. At
June 30, 2012, l00yo of the City's expected MSWLF capacity had been used and none of the sites
had accepted solid waste for several years. The City has covered, is in the process of covering, or
plans to cover each of its MSWLFs in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The liability for closure and postclosure care is estimated based on current cost, which is the amount
that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services included in the estimate were acquired
during the current period. This estimate is subject to changes due to inflation, deflation, technology
or applicable laws, and regulations. Such costs are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they
have been paid or are expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources; the
remaining liability is reported in the governmental activities statement of net assets. Additions to the
MSV/LF closure and postclosure care liability in fiscal 2012 were $2,060 for additional postclosure
care costs. Reductions to the liability in fiscal 2012 were $105.

Judgments and Claims

The City is uninsured with respect to risks including, but not limited to, property damage, personal
injury, and workers' compensation. In the governmental funds financial statements, expenditures for
judgments and claims (other than workers' compensation and condemnation proceedings) are

recorded on the basis of whether the liability has matured in the current period. Expenditures for
workers' compensation are recorded when paid. Settlements relating to condemnation proceedings
are reported when the liability is estimable. In the proprietary and government-wide financial
statements the estimated liability for all judgments and claims is recorded as a liability and as an
expense.

Long-Term Liabilities

For long-term liabilities, only that portion, which is matured, is reported as a fund liability of a
governmental fund. All long-term liabilities are reported in the government-wide statement of net
assets. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from discretely presented component unit
operations are accounted for in those component unit financial statements.

Investment Income

Except for the permanent funds and the CitySquare fund, investment income derived from
governmental funds is legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by
Massachusetts General Law.

Except for investment income of the internal service fund, investment income from proprietary funds
is voluntarily assigned to the general fund.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated
financial information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis.
Data in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

Property Taxes

The City must establish its property tax rate each year so that the resulting property tax levy will comply
with the limits required by Proposition2-Il2 and also constitute that amount, which will equal the sum of
(a) the aggregale of all annual appropriations for expenditures and transfers, plus (b) provision for the prior
fiscal year's deficits, if any, less (c) the aggregate ofall nonproperty tax revenue and transfers projected to
be received by the City, including available surplus funds.

Deposits, Investments, and Securities Lending

The Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) place limitations on the nature of deposits and investments that
are available to the City. Deposits (including demand and term deposits) in any one financial institution
may not exceed certain prescribed levels without collateralization or insurance protection by the financial
institution involved. Investments can be made in securities unconditionally guaranteed by the
U.S. Government with maturities of less than one year from the date of purchase, or in repurchase
agreements having maturities of 90 days or less, which are collateralizedby such securities. The City also
has the authority to purchase units in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), a pooied
fund managed for the Commonwealth. The City's pension trust fund and certain other trust funds have
expanded investment powers, including the ability to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds, and other
specified investments.

The composition of the City's deposits and investments fluctuates throughout the year depending primarily
on the timing of property tax receipts, water and sewer revenues, proceeds from borrowings, collections of
state and federal aid, and capital outlays.
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(ø) Deposìts ønd Investntents of the City (excluding component uníts)

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not
be recovered. The City's policy for custodial credit risk of deposits is to rely on FDIC insurance coverage
for the frrst $250 of deposits held at each financial institution and to collateralize certain bank accounts.
As of June 30,2011, $168,335 of the City's bank balance of $199,988 was insured and collateralized with
securities held by pledging financial institutions, and $31,653 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments Summary

The City's investments at June 30, 2072, are presented below.
investment type, with debt securities presented by maturity.

A1l investments are presented by

lnvestment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type

Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries..... $

U.S. Agencies.....
Corporate bonds.

Money market mutual funds.
Commercial paper.

Mutual bond funds.
Fixed income securities.

External investment pools.

Total debt securities.

Fair Less

Value Than 1 1-5 6-10
More

Than 10

42

2

93

73'1

435

100

88

879

2

808

7rl
a aa4

2,099

r,094
5,901

14,937

r92
7lr

3,337

2,099

r,094
5,907

13,340 7,172 188 137

Other Investments:

Equity securities 2,986

2,009Equity mutual funds

Total other investments 4,995

Total investments. $ 19,832
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Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

úrterest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates ofdebt securities will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Except for certain trust funds, the City does not have a policy for
interest rate risk of debt securities since MGL limit the City's investments to U.S. backed securities that
mature no more than one year from the initial investment date. Policies regarding interest rate risk for
certain trust fund investments are identified in the individual trust agreements.

Investments - Custodial Credit Ris!

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The City's policy for custodial credit risk of investments intends that all investments are
either insured and/or registered in the name of the City. As of June 30, 2012, none of the City's
investments were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfrll
its obligations. Except for certain trust funds, the City does not have a policy for credit risk of debt
securities since MGL limits the City's investments to U.S. backed securities or AAA rated money market
mutual funds. Policies regarding credit risk for certain trust fund investments are identified in the
individual trust agreements. As of June 30, 2012, the credit quality ratings (per Standard & Poors, a
national credit rating organizalion) of the City's investment in debt securities (including implicitly-
guaranteed investments in U.S. Agencies) are as follows:

Quality U.S.

Ratings Agencies

Money
Market

Corporate Mutual
Bonds Funds

Mutual

Bond

Funds

Fixed Extemal
lncome Investment

Securities Pools Totals

AAA .. $

AA+
AA
AA-
A+
A
A-
BBB+
BBB ..

BBB-.
BB+. ,..
BB
BB-
Unrated

1

- 244
-34
- 19

- 38

-35
- 34'7

-41
-41
-9

103

292

95

161

294

398

589

563

306

131

t32
106

42

t0,740

13,958

Commercial

Paper

r0l
48

61

148

256

363

242

522

265

122

132

106

42

929't11 5,90'7

'71t 3,337
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(In thousands of dollars)

þ) Deposits and fnvestments of the WRS

Deposits and investments made by the WRS are governed by the MGL Chapter 32. The WRS has the
ability to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds, annuities and other specified investments i¡
accordance with state laws and regulations.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the WRS's deposits may not
be recovered. The WRS's policy for custodial credit risk of deposits is to rely on FDIC insurance coverage
for the frrst $250 of deposits held at each financial institution. As of December 37,2011, the Vy'RS's bank
balance of $368 was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments Summary

The WRS's investments at December 31, 2011 are presented below. All investments are presented by
investment type, with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment T¡rpe

Fair Less

Value Thanl 1-5
More

6 - 10 Than 10

Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries...

U.S. Agencies.....
Corporate bonds.

Money market mutual funds.

Debt security mutual funds.

Total debt securities.

Other Investments:

Equity securities

Equitymutual funds

Real estate investments

Alternative investments

54,752

22,572

37,987

1,841

34,507

13,695

10,023

1,841

24,711

17,290

6,053

10,159

10,439

7,732

8,609

12,728

15,387

8,596

34,102 20,180 46,507

51

151,059 50,270

28,135

289,621

81,715

I40,gg2

Total other investments 540,453

Total investments. ..... $ 691,512
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(In thousands of dollars)

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates ofdebt securities will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The WRS's policies for interest rate risk intend that the average
duration of investments remain fairly stable over time and be focused in the intermediate range. The
WRS's debt security managers are not permitted to make large-scale changes in portfolio duration in an
attempt to anticipate interest rate changes. However, they are permitted to shift portfolio duration within a
limited range (defined by their guidelines) in an effort to enhance performance.

hvestments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
WRS will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The WRS's policy for custodial credit risk of investments intends that all
investments are either insured and/or registered in the name of the WRS. As of December 37, 2017, the
WRS was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulf,rll
its obligations. The WRS's policies for credit risk of debt securities includes a policy of an 80%o120% split
between investment grade (BBB lBaa and above) and below investment grade (BBlBa and lower) debt
securities. In monitoring credit risk, the WRS relies on credit ratings assigned by Moody's and Standard &
Poor's.
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As of Decemb er 37 , 2011 , the credit quality ratings of the WRS ' s debt securities are as follows:

lnvestment Tlpe

Corporate

Bonds

Money
Market

Mutual
Funds

Debt

Security
Mutual Fair
Funds ValueQuality Ratings *

395

547
AA

2,871

t4
18

579

3,272

561

18

841

1,880

1,014

3,891

1,340

2,2r6
2,399

1,185

2,760

1,301

1,518

2,569
1,656

693

1,813

135

A+
AA- 841

1,880

981

3,395

1,340

2,216

2,390
1,185

2,147

r,264
1,46r
) <)a

1,656

693

1,234

13s

A
A

J5

496

9

13

3t
57

40

BBB+
BBB

BB+
BBB-

BB

B+
BB-

B

B-

227

Il,2r2

CCC+
CCC

CCC-
CC... 264

380

29,690

177

82

44r
82

Total. ... ... ..... $ 37,987 1,847 34,507 14,335:::

* Per the rating scale of Standard & Poors, a national credit rating organization
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(In thousands of dollars)

Deposits and Investments - Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign culrency risk is the risk that fluctuations in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. The WRS's policy is to limit investments in non-U.S. dollar-denominated
securities to not exceed 10Yo of the total market value of investments at all times. As of December 31,
2011, the WRS's exposure to foreign cuffency risk is as follows:

.S. Dollar
Deposit/Investment Type Balances Currency

Corporate bonds. $ 676 Indonesian rupiah
U.S. Agencies... .. 480 Mexican peso

Corporate bonds. 508 South Korean won
Corporate bonds. 587 Philippine peso

Corporate bonds. 254 Austalian dollar
Corporate bonds. 172 Euro
U.S. Agencies..... 526 Euro
Corporate bonds. 2Il Indian rupee

Corporate bonds. 476 Braztlianreal
U.S. Agencies... .. 614 Brazilian real

U.S. Agencies... .. 124 Uruguayan peso

Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the WRS's investment in a
single issuer. The WRS's policy for concentration of credit risk instructs investment managers not to
invest more than 5%o of their portfolio at market value in a single security, or in the securities of a single
issuer or its subsidiaries. U.S. Treasury, U.S. government agency, mutual fund and pooled fund
investments are exempted from this restriction. As of December 3I, 2071, the WRS was not exposed to
concentration of credit risk.
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(c) Deposits ønd fnvestments of the Distríct

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available to the
District.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may
not be recovered. The District's policy for custodial credit risk of deposits is to rely on FDIC insurance
coverage for the f,rrst $250 of deposits held at each financial institution and collaleralize the remaining
amounts. At June 30,2072, the District's deposits were fully insured and collateralized.

Investments Summary

The District's investments at June 30, 2072, are presented below. All investments are presented by
investment type, with debt securities presented by contractual maturity.

Investment Maturities
(in Years)

Fair Less

Lrvestment Type Value Than 1 1 - 5

Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries

U.S. Agencies

Total debt securities

Other Investments:

Equity securities

Total investments

$ 463 68 39s

t,755 94r 814

2,278 1,009 1,209

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates ofdebt securities will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The District's policies for interest rate risk permit the investment
manager discretion to recommend a duration that is pegged at the Shearson Lehman I¡rtermediate Treasury
Benchmark. The portfolio's duration may be shorter or longer than the benchmark depending upon the
investment manager's interest rate forecast. The benchmark duration averages 3.5 years. Deviation of the
portfolio's duration to the benchmark typically will not exceed two years.
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Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure by the custodian, the District
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The District is required to custody securities in depository accounts (at a depository trust
company or Federal Reserve Bank), which are not subject to the bank's creditor claims. As of June 30,
2012,none of the District's investments were subject to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill
its obligations. The District's policies for credit risk of debt securities restricts investment to debt
obligations maintaining a AAA rating by Standard & Poors or Moody's rating services or are fuIl faith
obligations of the U.S. Treasury. As of June 30, 2012, the credit quality ratings of the District's U.S
Treasury and U.S. Agency investments were AAA rated or backed by the full faith of the U.S. Treasury.

Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District's investment in a
single issuer. The District's policy for concentration of credit risk instructs investment managers not to
invest more than 5%o of their portfolio at market value in a single security, or in the securities of a single
issuer or its subsidiaries. Obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. government agencies and money market
funds are exempted from this restriction. As of June 30, 2012, the District had no investments with a
single issuer that represented 5 percent or more of the District's total investments.

(d) Deposits of the WRA

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available to the
WRA.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the WRA's deposits may not
be recovered. The WRA does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30,2012,
WRA's bank balanc e of 5202 was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

(e) Securitíes Lendíng

The Massachusetts Division of Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC) has
issued supplemental regulations that permit WRS to engage in securities lending transactions. These
transactions are conducted by one of WRS's brokers, who lend certain securities owned by WRS to other
broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a form of loan agreement. WRS and the borrowers maintain the right
to terminate all securities lending transactions on demand.

56



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

The custodian lends, at the direction of the lending agent, WRS's securities and cash received (including
both U.S. and foreign currency), U.S. Government securities, sovereign debt of foreign countries and
irrevocable bank letters ofcredit as collateral. The lending agent does not have the ability to pledge or sell
collateral securities delivered unless the borrower defaults. Borrowers are required to deliver cash
collateral in amounts equal to not less than 105%o of the market value of foreign securities on loan and
102o/o of the market value if domestic securities on loan (Required Collateral Level). If at any time the
market value of the collateral for any loan decreases to 100% or less of the market value of the loaned
securities borrowers are required to provide additional collateral sufficient to increase the market value of
the collateral to at least the Required Collateral Level.

WRS does not impose any restrictions on the amount of securities lent on its behalf by the lending agent.
There were no failures by any borrowers to return loaned securities or pay distributions thereon, nor were
there any losses from default of the borrowers or the lending agent for the year ended December 31, 2011.
The cash collateral received on each loan was invested, together with the cash collateral of other qualihed
tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective investment pool. The relationship between the average maturities
of the investment pool and loans was affected by the maturities of the loans made by other plan entities
that invested cash collateral in the collective investment pool, which WRS could not determine.

At December 31,2011, WRS had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts WRS owed
the borrowers exceeded the amounts owed to WRS. The cash collateral held and the fair value of
securities on loan for WRS at December37,2071 was 535,442 and $57,161, respectively. Borrower
rebates and fees paid to the broker were $60 for the year ended December 31,2011.

(4) City of Worcester Contributory Retirement System (WRS or the Plan)

(u) Plan Descrìptìon and Membershìp

The City provides pension benefits to certain employees through WRS, a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer public employee retirement system regulated by PERAC. WRS is a defined
benefit pension plan that covers eligible employees of the City (which includes the 'Worcester

Redevelopment Authority) and the Worcester Housing Authority. For the year ended December 31,
2071, the City's payroll for employees covered by WRS was approximately $160,000; the City's
total payroll was approximately $336,000.

Membership in WRS is mandatory immediately upon commencement of employment for all
permanent, fuIl-time employees working at least 20 hours weekly, except for (1) employees eligible
to participate in the Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System (as discussed in note 5); and
(2) employees of the District, who are covered by the state Retirement System. Disclosures
applicable to the District's retirement plan are not material.
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Membership in WRS was as follows at December 37,2071:

Active employees

Pensioners and beneficiaries
lnactive employees with vested rights

Total members

Number of participating employers

3,178

2,776

7s9

6,713

2

(b) Sìgnìlicønt Plan Provísíons ønd Requìrements

Benefit provisions and contribution requirements of WRS are established by state law.

Members of WRS become vested after l0years of creditable service. Normal retirement occurs at
age 65 except for special situations and the City's police officers and firefighters, whose normal
retirement age is 55. Retired employees receive an allowance based upon the average of their three
highest consecutive salary years of service multiplied bV (1) the number of years and full months of
creditable service at the time of retirement and (2) a percentage based on age at retirement in
accordance with a schedule provided by state law. Assuming normal retirement aI age65, this
percentage is 2.5%io, which is reduced for individuals who retire prior to age 65 to reflect the longer
payout period. Employees may elect early retirement after 20 years of service or at any time after
attaining age 55 with l0 years of eligible service. Plan members who become permanently and
totally disabled may be eligible to receive a disability retirement allowance.

The amount of benefits to be received depends on several factors, including the member's ags,
compensation, veteran status, years of creditable service, and whether or not the disability is
work-related. In addition, certain death benefits exist for beneficiaries of employees who die in
active service.

Funding Polícy

Participation in the plan requires that members contribute a fixed percentage of their compensation
(either 5yo, 7%o, 8o/o, or 9%o) each pay period. This percentage varies depending upon the date of
employment. Members hired after December 3I,7978 must contribute an additional 2o/o of regular
compensation in excess of $30. Employee contributions vest immediately. After 10 years of service
employee benehts become fully vested. After 20 years of service, or upon having attained the age of
55 with at least 10 years of service, employees are eligible to receive benefits under the plan.
Benefits are determined in the manner described above.

Contributions are recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant to formal
commitments, statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized as

deductions when incurred and administrative expenses are funded through investment earnings.

(c)
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(In thousands of dollars)

Member employers are required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance benefits,
except for certain cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) granted between 1982 and 1997, which are
reimbursed by the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments from the
Commonwealth totaled $1,597 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and, accordingly, are reported
in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and fringe benefits.

The current and two preceding years' apportionment of the annual required contributions between
the employers required the City to contribute approximately 9l%o, 92o/o, and 92%o respectively of the
total.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2012 the required and actual contribution was $29,720. For the year
ended June 30,2011 the required and actual contribution was$27,277 and forthe year ended June
30, 2010 the required and actual contribution was $26,1 17 . At June 30, 2072, The City did not have a
net pension obligation.

The required contribution was determined as part of the January I,2012, actuarial valuation using
the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the WRS at January 7,2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as

follows:

Schedule of funding progress

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
Valuation Value of Plan Accrued Accrued

Date Assets Liabilitv Liabilitv

UAAL as a

Percent of
Funded Covered Covered
Ratio Payroll Pavroll (7o)

Ut/2012 $

(a)

112,710

(b)

l,o5l,l g l
(b-a)

339,081

(a/b) (c)

6',7.74% $ 159,670

(b - a)lc
212.36%

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following
the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benef,rts.
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(Í) Methods and Assumptìons

The signif,rcant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date January 1,2012
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization method Level payments on the 2002 and 2010 ERI liability and the Section 90

ACD liability and 4.0%o increasing payments on the remaining
unfunded liability beginning in fiscal year 2016. Prior to ftsca72016,
the appropriation for fiscal 20 I 3 and 2014 are 8%o higher than the prior
fiscal year; the payment on the remaining unfunded liability for fiscal
2015 is 10.75% higher than the prior year.

Remaining amofüzed period 6 years for the 2002 ERI liability
(period is closed) 9 years for the 2010 ERI liability

2 years for the Section 90 ACD liability and

23 years for the remaining unfunded liability
23 years is the equivalent single amortizationperiod (ESAP)

Asset valuation method The difference between the expected return and the actual investment
return on a market value basis recognized over a five-year period,
further adjusted (if necessary) to be within 10% of the market value

Actuarial assumptions

Investment rate of retum 8.00%
Projected salary increases 4.75%
Rate of inflation 3.75%

Cost of living adjustments 3.00Yo of the first $13 of retirement income
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@) Legølly Required Reserve Accounts

The balances in WRS's legally required reserves as of December 31, 20ll are as follows:

Description
Annuity Savings Fund

AnnuityReserve Fund

Military Service Fund

Pension Reserve Fund

Pension Fund

Total

Amount
$ 16sB08

55,707

I6
406,547

27,824

$ 656,002

Purpose
Active members' contribution balance

Retired members' contribution account

Members'contribution account while on military leave

Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement benefits

Remaining net assets

All reserve accounts are funded at levels required by state law.

(5) Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System, a Noncontributing Employer Plan

(ø) Plan Descrìptìon

Teachers, certain administrators, and other professionals of the School Department participate in a

contributory defined benefit plan administered by the Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System.
The City's payroll covered by this plan in fiscal 2012 was approximately $175,700. Eligibility
requirements for participation are as follows:

. The employee must be employed on at least a half-time basis in a contracted professional
position within a public school system located in Massachusetts.

o The employee must be certified by the Massachusetts Department of Education for a position,
which requires certification.

Benefit provisions and contribution requirements are established by state law.

Participation in the plan requires that members contribute a fixed percentage of their compensation
(either 5Vo,7o/o, 8%o, or 9Yo) each pay period. This percentage varies depending upon the date of
employment. Members hired after December 3I, 1918 must contribute an additional 2%o of regular
compensation in excess of $30. Employee contributíons vest immediately. After 10 years of service
employee benefits become fully vested. After 20 years of service, or upon having attained the age of
55 with at least 10 years of service, employees are eligible to receive benefits under the plan.
Benefits are based on the avetage of the three highest consecutive salaried years of employee service
and are determined in a manner similar to the provisions of WRS (see note 4).
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MGL Chapter II4 of the Acts of 2000 allows for all eligible members of the Massachusetts
Teachers' Retirement System to contribute aT a flat 7lo/o rate as of July I, 200I in order to receive a
retirement benefit enhancement. This benefit enhancement requires a minimum of frve years of
contribution at this I1,%o rare and at least thirty years of creditable service in order to receive
accelerated retirement benefits up to the statutory maximum of 80%. Contribution at this l1% was
voluntary for existing members of the retirement system and is mandated to all new members as of
July 1,2001.

The City has no obligation to contribute to this plan. The Commonwealth funds plan benehts to the
extent that funding is not provided through employee contributions. The amount of these on-behalf
payments from the Commonwealth totaled $55,135 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201,2 and,
accordingly, are reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and fünge benefits.

(6) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

(a) Plan Descrìptíon - City

In addition to the pension benefits described in notes 4 and5, the City provides health and life insurance
benefits to current and future retirees, their dependents and benef,rciaries through a single-employer plan
(hereinafter referred to as the "Plan") in accordance with MGL Chapter 328 under various contributory
plans. Specific benefit provisions and contribution rates are established by collective-bargaining
agreements, state law, and City ordinance. All benefits are provided through third-party insurance carriers
and health maintenance organizations that administer, assume, and pay all claims for specif,rc plans, while
the City partially self-funds the claims for the remaining plans. The Plan does not issue a stand alone
financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose ofpaying benefits under
the Plan.

The number of participants as of July 1,207I, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees 4,154
Retired employees, beneficiaries and dependents 4,873

Total

(b) Fundíng Polícy - City

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the
City. Twenty-five percent of the calculated contribution is paid by the retirees through pension benefit
deductions. The remainder of such cost is funded by the City. The City contributes 100% towards a $5
term life insurance premium. The City currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfu current
obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the City.
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(c) Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Oblígatìon - City

The City's ar¡rual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of
the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in accordance with the parameters set

forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess)
over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount
contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation:

Trend information regarding arurual pension cost, the
and the net pension obligation is as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost

Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation at end of year

Amount

$ 45,506

6,241

Q2,377)

39,370

(20,504)

18,866

1 60,01 3

$ 178,879

percentage of the annual pension cost

Percentage Net

ofAOPEBC OPEB

Contributed (%) Obligation

contributed

June 30,2010
June 30, 201 1

Jlone30,2012

128,086

160,013

178,879

Fiscal Year

Ending

Annual

OPEB Cost

(AOPEBC)

53,368

53,148

39,370

38.6

40.6

52.0
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Jlune 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

(d) Funded Status and Fundíng Progress - Cìty

The funded status of the Plan at July 1, 20lI,the most recent actuarial valuation, was as follows:

07101111 $ 636,335 $ 636,335 0.0% $ 313,753 203%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the ar¡rual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

(e) Methods and Assumptíons - City

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan as

understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Valuation date:
Actuarial cost method:
Amortization method:
Remaining amofüzalion period :

Interest discount rate:
Inflation rate:
Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate:

Actuarial
Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded
Value of Projected Unit AAL
Assets Credit (UAAL)
(A) (B) (B-A)

UAAL as a

Percentage

Funded Covered ofCovered
Ratio Payroll Payroll
(A/B) (c) ((B-Ayc)

July 1, 2011
Projected Unit Credit
Level percent ofpay, closed
26years as of July 7,2017
4.0%
4.0%
9.0%o decreasing 0.5% for 8 years to an ultimate level of 5.0%o

per year
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June30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

(Í) Allocation of AOPEBC - Cíty

AOPEBC costs were allocated to the City's functions as follows:

Governmental Activities :

General government

Public safety

Health and human services

Education
Public works
Culture and recreation

Total AOPEBC - governmental activities

Business-Type Activities :

Water

Sewer

Golf course (nonmajor)

Total AOPEBC - business-type activities

Total AOPEBC

crTY oF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Active employees

Retired employee s, beneficiaries and dependents

Total

2,634

8,598

36r
24,r70

1,422

986

38,17r

853

335

11

1,199

$ J9,370_

52

14

@) Plan Description - The District

The District provides health and life insurance benefits to retired employees and their survivors through the
Commonwealth's Group Insurance Commission (GIC), a cost-sharing multiple employer plan (hereinafter
referred to as the "Plan"). Specific benefit provisions and contribution rates are established by GIC. All
benefits are provided through third-party insurance carriers and health maintenance organizalions that
administer, assume, and pay all claims for specific plans. The Plan does not issue a stand alone financial
report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose ofpaying benefits under the Plan.

The number of participants as of June 30,2011, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:
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(In thousands of dollars)

(h) Fundìng Policy - The Dìstrìct

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and may be amended by
GIC. Ten to fifteen percent of contributions are paid by retirees. The District currently contributes enough
money to the Plan to satisff current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis, The costs of administering the
Plan are paid by the District.

(ù Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Oblígatìon - The Dístrict

The District's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC)
of the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in accordance with the parameters set
forth in GASB Statement #45 . The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amofüze any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess)
over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual
amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the District's net OPEB obligation:

Amount

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost

Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation at end of year

$ s41

51

(46)

546

(1s 1)

39s
1,469

$ 1,863
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(In thousands of dollars)

Trend information regarding annual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed
and the net pension obligation is as follows:

Annual Percentage Net

Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB

Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed (%) Obligation

June 30,2010 $ 711

June 30, 201 1

Jlurre30,2012
524

s46

23.2 r,064

22.9 r,468
27 .7 1,863

0 Funded Status ønd Fundìng Progress - The District

The funded status of the Plan at June 30, 20lI,the most recent actuarial valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage

Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll of Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (c) ((B-Ayc)

06/30/11 $ $ t1,623 S 71,623 0.0% $ 3,173 366%

(k) Methods ønd Assumptions - The District

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date: June 30, 2011

Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit

Ãmortization method: Level percent of pay assuming 4.0%o increasing, opening basis

Remaining amortizationperiod: 30 years as of July 1,2010 (open)

Interest discount rate: 3.5%

Inflation rate: 4.0%

Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate: 8.5% decreasing by 0.5%o for 7 years to an ultimate level of
s.0%
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(7) Accounts Receivable

At June 30, 2072, receivables for the
internal service and fiduciary funds in
accounts, are as follows:

J:une 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

individual major governmental funds and nonmajor governmental,
the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible

Gross

Amount

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles

Net
Amount

Receivables:

Property taxes

Tax liens

Motor vehicle excise taxes

Special assessments

Departmental and other
Intergovernmental

$ 8,425

3,467

5,981
) \q)
9,309

77,507

(2,874)
(326)

(3,752)

(3,365)

5,551

3,14r
2,229
) \q)
5,944

77,507

1 1,955

2,048
409

Allowance
for Net

Uncollectibles Amount

r4,472

s 1.07,281 (10,311) 96,964

At June, 30,2012, receivables for the enterprise funds are as follows:

Gross

Amount
Receivables:

Charges for services

Utility liens

Special assessments

$ 14,412
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(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following identifies the
components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds:

General

Fund

Other

Governmental

Funds Total
Receivable Type:

Property taxes

Tax liens

Motor vehicle excise taxes

Special assessments

Departmental and other
Intergovernmental (school constructioÐ
Intergovernmental (other state and federal)

s 3,458

3,74r
1,559
) \o)ltJr-

1,797

72,623

1,680

1,403

3,459

3,147

1,558

2,592

3,200
72,623

1,690

$ _86,849_ 1,403 _88252_

The Commonwealth has approved school construction assistance to the City. The assistance program,
which is administered by the MSBA, provides resources for future debt service of general obligation
school bonds outstanding. During ftscal year 2012, $15,203 of such assistance was received.
Approximately $91,591 will be received in fufure fiscal years. Of this amount, $18,968 represents
reimbursement of long-term interest costs, and $72,623 represents reimbursement of approved construction
costs. Accordingly, a $72,623 intergovernmental receivable and corresponding defened revenue have
been reported in the governmental funds financial statements. The deferred revenue has been recognized
as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements.
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(In thousands of dollars)

(8) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Prìmary Government

Beginning
balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land $ 20,316
Construction in progress 99,519

Total capital assets not being depreciated I 19,835

Increases Decreases

Ending
balance

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Rolling equipment
Equipment and other
Infrastructure

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Rolling equipment
Equipment and other
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Govemmental capital assets, net

503,391

33,188
27,0r8
14,gl0

188,328

767,395

193,t69
6,828

21,465
12,ll2
q) q1)

327,206
440,789

s 560,024

173

38,146
38,319

65,790
1,755
1,3 g6

t,094
18,710

88,735

15,8 I 5

1,636

1,099

694
8,472

27,716

61,079
99,338

61,296

61,296

20,489
76,369
96,858

569,1.16

35,543
28,404
15,964

207,038
856,125

208,984
8,464

22,564
13,466

101,444

354,922

507,203
61,301 598,061

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary govemment as follows:

Governmental activities :

General goveÍrment

Public safety

Public works
Education

Health and human services

Culture and recreation
Total depreciation expense -

governmental activities

$87
1,472

70,326

10,1 89

215
5,427

s 27,716
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Jvne 30,201.2

(In thousands of dollars)

Beginning
balance Increases

Business-type activities:
Water:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets,

not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Rolling equipment
Inf¡astructure
Equipment and other

Total capital assets,

being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Rolling equipment

Infrastructure
Equipment and other

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Water capital assets, net

Sewer:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets,

not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings
Rolling equipment
Infrastructure
Equipment and other

Total capital assets,

being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Rolling equipment
Infrastructure
Equipment and other

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net
Sewer capital assets, net

5,874 t,495 412

5,044 r,000
830 495

Ending
Decreases balance

4t2

39,897
2,423

139,463

255

182,038

16,429
r,664

53,683
lt2

71,888

110,1s0
t16,024

1t7
3,948

4,06s

3,940
5,079

t57,002
426

1,17 t
61

5,429
148

6,809

1,074

r40
4,615

28

6,957

41,068

2,484
t44,892

403

5,857

952
2,447

2,230

2,230

JOJ

687
8,2ss

90

1 88,847

17,503

1,804

s8,298
140

77,745

111,102
1 18,059

rt7
6,170

6,287

4,303
5,7 66

t65,257
st6

t75,842

1,689
3,272

7 5,570
194

80,725

9s,t17
10t,404

t66,447

1,537
2,859

70,398
t49

74,943

91,504
9s,s69

9,395

152

413
5,172

45

71



CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Golf course (nonmajor) :

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Construction in progress

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Infrastructure

Total capital assets,

being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Golf capital assets, net
Business-type activities

capital assets, net

Discretely presented component

units - The District:
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets,

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Treatment facilities
Equipment and other

Total capital assets,

being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Treatment facilities
Equipment and other

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance

8282

966 966

1,637 73 - 1,710

2,603 73 - 2,676

1,863 (64)
t,87t (62) 8 1,801

s 2t3,464 _8228_ 428 221264_

s 702 702

r9,77',7 15,800 2,267 33,310

211,633 2,138 - 213,771

4,327 452 - 4,119

215,960 2,590 _ 218,550

49,044 1,142 - 56,786

3,473 211 - 3,624

188 44 - 232

552 93 - 645

740 137 - 877

not being depreciated 20,419 15,800 2,267 34,012

Total accumulated depreciation 52,457 7,953 - 60,410

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 163,503 (5,363)

The District's capital assets, net $ 183,982 10,437 2,267 192,152
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(In thousands of dollars)

Beginning

Discretely presented component
units -.WRA:

Capital assets, not being depreeiated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets,

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment and other

Total capital assets,

being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Equipment and other

s 1,210 1,270

1280-92

not being depreciated 1.,282 80 - 1,362

Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance

40,197 40,197

176 

- 

- 176

40,373 _ _ 40,313

9,866 1,013 - 10,879

103 5 - 108

Total accumulated depreciation 9,969 1,018 - 10,987

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 30,404 (1,018)
wRA capital assets, net $ 31ó86 (93Ð 

- 

jf.Jß:

C o n stru ctío n C orumitm ents

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2012. The projects include land improvements,
infrastructure and building improvements. At year-end, the City's commitments with contractors are as

follows:

Spent through Remaining
Proiect June 30.2012 commitment

Infrastructure improvements

Building improvements
Land improvements

Total

$ 36,664 37,043
17,289
)'77\

$ 54,639 57,107

14,811

3,164

The commitments for the aforementioned projects are being funded by general obligation bonds.
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(9) Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt at June 30,2012 is summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Less outstanding long{erm debt

Less outstanding temporary debt

Add outstanding debt that is not capital related

Add unspent proceeds ofcapital related debt

Invested in capítal assets, net ofrelated debt

B usìnes s -Type Activities

Capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation

Less outstanding long-term debt

Less outstanding temporary debt

s 952,983

(354,922)

(459,935)
(48,130)

180,859

17,921

$ 288,776

Total

Golf Enterprise Funds/

Course Business-Type

Water Sewer (Nonmajor) Activities

$ 195,804 182,t29 2,678 380,611

(17,745) (80,725) (877) (159,347)

(66,t67) (51,504) (1,823) (125,494)

(10,023) (14,13s) (2s) (24,183)

Add unspent proceeds of capital related debt 6,094 10, I 08 67 16,269

Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt $ 41,963 39,873 20 87,856

(10) Operating Leases

The City occasionally leases building and office facilities and other equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases. Total costs for such leases were $146 for the year ended June 30,2012.
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Future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

20r3
2014
2015

20t6
2017

201 8

Total

(11) Long-Term Obligations

(ø) Prímary Government

The following is a summary of changes in
long-term obligations, including portions due
assets.

Amount

r57

r57
157

157

1,57

157

s 942

noncurrent governmental bond principal and other
within one year, as reported in the statement of net

General obligation bonds:

Inside debt limit
Outside debt limit

Notes payabìe - Section 108

Judgments and claims
Compensated absences

Landfill closure and

postclosure care costs

Otber post employment benefits

Deferred amounts on bond

premrum

Interest Outstanding
percentage beginning

range ofyear

Q.00%-8.00%) $ 137,400

(2.00%-8.s0%) 324,901
(2.310/0-6.01%) 4,505

I l,l l9
12,944

2,874

156,028

3,38ó

653,157

Additions Reductions

28,07 s

9,215

1,085

8,83 I

2,060

38,171

827

24,527

19,525

109

1,106

8,5 84

105

t9,822

905

Outstanding

end

of year

140,948

3r4,s91
4,396

I 1,098

l3,l 9l

4,829

174,377

3,308

666,738

Due within
one yeâr

16,718

19,915

ll3
1,730

8,951

88264 74,683

For governmental activities, bonds and notes payable are liquidated by the general fund, debt service fund
and various other govemmental funds. Claims and judgments, compensated absences and landfill closure
and postclosure care are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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(In thousands of dollars)

The following is a summary of changes in noncurrent business-type bond principal and other long-term
obligations, including portions due within one year as reported in the statement of net assets.

Interest Outstanding
percen(âge beginning

range of year Additions Reductions

(2.00%-8.00%) $

Q.00%-8.s0%)
(2.31%-6 Ùto/o)

9,333
t 15,959

714

1,243

716

3,984

54

$ 132,063

Outstanding

end

of year

8,798

l I 5,003

1,693

1,424

730

4,502

49

Due within
one year

1,124

10,7'7 6

48

254

569

6

12,777

General obligation bonds:

Inside debt limit
Outside debt limit

MWPAT note payable

Judgments and clairns

Compensated absences

Other post employment benefits

Defèrred amounts on bond premium

I,210

1 8,1 43

965

282

567

t,199

1,805

I 9,099

46

101

553

681

-5
22,426 22,290

On July 12, 2011, the City issued $16,755 of general obligation refunding bonds. On November I, 20ll
the City issued 533,263 of general obligation bonds. The proceeds consisted of 523p23 for governmental
activities and $10,240 for business-type activities. On June 12,2012 the City issued $6,845 of general
obligation bonds, all for governmental activities to fund construction of CitySquare. On June 13, 2012, the
City issued a $965 loan with the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT) for business-
type activities.

(b) Maturìty of Bond Indebtedness

Bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30,2012 matures as follows:

Governmental activities
Governmental Funds

Business-fype activities
Water Sewer

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year ending June 30:

2013
2014
2015
20t6
20t7
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042

$ 36,633
34,479
37,903
35,118
34,137

135,246
102,613

26,350
8,991

3,409

2,613
2,268
1,931

I,585
1,276

3,922
1,670

491
130

25,777 8,242
24,561 8,421
18,872 9,345
17,145 8,527
15,512 5,868
55,621 14,515
25,638 8,107
4,648 2,824
I,577 1,3 I 8

l9l
189J54 66:rl

3,505

3,517
3,5r7
3,343
3,27t

16,022

13,932

5,317
3,387

55,811 20,771

2,215
2,073
1,931

1,794
1,662

6,375
3,220
1,163

338

$ 455,539
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(In thousands of dollars)

Business-type activities Business-type
Golf course (nonmajor) activities totals
Principal Interest Principal fnterest

$ 153 72 11,900 4,900
155 65 12,093 4,406
157 58 12,019 3,920
160 52 12,030 3,431
163 46 9,302 2,984
649 t4t 31,186 10,378

315 54 22,354 4,944
56 11 8,197 1,665

15 3 4,120 471

$ r,823 _.f,2_@_@_

The City has a guaranteed loan agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development Section 108 to fund the Gardner, Kilby and Hammond Streets rehabilitation in the

amount of $4,396. The City also has loan agreements with the M'WPAT to fund the Southbridge
Street sewer separation project and water pollution abatement projects in the amount of $ I ,693.

Scheduled loan principal and interest repayments and related anticipated subsidies of the Section 108

and MWPAT loans as of June 30,2012 are as follows:

Governmental activities
General fund

Principal Interest
Year ending June 30:

2013

20t4
20t5
2016
2017

2018-2022
2023-2027 t,44t 197

s 4,396 1,938

Year ending June 30:

2013
20t4
20t5
2016
2017

2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032

2033-2031

$ 113 249

l 19 308

126 237

131 1r4
138 223

2,328 610
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(In thousands of dollars)

Business-tvpe activities
Sewer Business-type

Anticipated subsidy activities totals (net)

Principal Interest Principal Interest Prjrylp4l 
_ 
Interest

Year ending June 30:

2013

2014
2015

2016
2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2041

48
89

95

96

97
539

395
334

46
51

47
43

40
137

50
2l

48

89

95

96

97

s39

388

329

21

34

32
30
29

118

50

2t

t9
t7
15

t3
11

19

$ 1,693 435 t2 1^68 t 341

(c) Authorized and Unissued Debt

The City is subject to a dual-level general debt limit: the normal debt limit and the double debt limit.
Such limits are equal to 5o/o and l0o/o, respectively; of the valuation of taxable property in the City as

last equalized by the Commonwealth's Depaftment of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the
normal debt limit without state approval. Authorizations under the double debt limit, however,
require the approval of the Commonwealth's Municipal Finance Oversight Board. Additionally,
certain categories of general obligation debt are exempt from the debt limit but subject to other
limitations.
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(In thousands of dollars)

Authorized and unissued debt at June 30,2012 is as follows:

hside debt limit:
Building rehabilitation

School construction
Street construction

Union Station Garage

Dep artmental equipment

Parks improvements

Blackstone Valley Visitors' Center

Water building rehabilitation
Major Taylor Garage Walkway
S ewer building rehabilitation

Water reservoir rehabilitation
Worcester Common rehabilitation

Off street parking

Land acquisition
Dam improvements

Major Taylor Garage

Urban Systems Gateway

Vocational School construction
Sewer equipment

South Worcester Industrial Park

Building demolition

Greenhill Golf Course access road
Bridge construction
Trafhc signals

University Park

Landfill monitoring
Parking meters

Total inside debt limit

s 57,439

48,120

20,480

16,810

9,r84
5,340
2,910

2,165
1,850

1,000

800

605

s95

525

475

470

465

4r0
390

350

268

255
100

50

50

50

25

171,1.81
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(In thousands of dollars)

Outside debt limit:
CitySquare

Sewer construction

DCU building rehabilitation
Water f,rltration

Reservoir rehabilitation

Water mains

December, 2008 ice storm clean-up

Greenhill Golf Course improvements
Surface drain construction
Acquisition of trees

Water hydrants

Total outside debt limit
Total inside and outside debt limit

72,775

21,497

19,010

4,169

1,950

1,740

975

770

48s

r25
50

123,546

$ 294,727

At June 30, 2072, in addition to debt authorized but unissued, the City may issue $275,489 of
additional general obligation debt under the normal debt limit. The City had$429,594 of outstanding
debt exempt from the debt limit.

(d) Advønce Refundíngs

The principal amount of debt refunded through prior year in-substance defeasance transactions and
still outstanding at June 30, 2012was $107,415.

(e) Current Refunding - Iuly 12, 2011

On July 12, 2011, the City issued $16,755 in current refunding bonds to refund $17,063 of
previously issued and outstanding bonds with an average interest rate of approximately 5.50%. The
average interest rate of the current refunding bonds is approximately 2.75%o.

The net proceeds from the current refunding were used to retire the outstanding bonds and the
related accrued interest. The reacquisition price equaled the net carrying amount of the old debt. As
a result of this refunding, the City will reduce its total gross debt service payments over the
remaining life of the bonds by approximately $2,770 and will realize an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately
$2,000.
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June 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Dìscretely Presented Component Uníts - The Dìstrict

Long-term obligations consisted of the following at June 30,2012:

1997 General Obligation Bonds issued to the MWPAT. The bonds are
payable in varying principal alnounts at an average coupon rate of 5.53%
with a final payment due February 1,2017.

1999 General Obligation Bonds issued to the MWPAT. The bonds are

payable in varying principal amounts at an average coupon rate of 5.25%
with a final payment due February 1,2020.

2001 Gene¡al Obligation Bonds issued to the MWPAT. The bonds are

payable in varying principal amounts at an average coupon rate of 5.10"/o

with a final payrnent due February 1,2021.
2003 General Obligation Bonds payable in varying annual instalhnents at an

average coupon raíç of 4.l4o/" with a frnal paynent due March 15,2023 .

2004 General Obligation Bonds issued to the MWPAT. The bonds are
payable in varying principal amounts at an average coùpon rate of2 48%
with a final payrnent due August l, 2034.

2007 Gene¡al Obligation Bonds issued to the Massachusetts Wate¡ Pollution
Abatement Trust. The Bonds are payable in varying principal arnounts

with interest at 2.35% with a final payment due July 15,2034.
2007 General Obligation Bonds issued to the Massachusetts Wate¡ Pollution

Abaternent Tn:st The Bonds are payable in varying principal amounts

with interest at 2.30% with a final payrnent due July 15, 2036

2007 General Obligation Refunding Bonds payable in varying principal
amounts starting August l, 2009 until August l, 20 19 at an average

coupon rate of 3.93%.

s 4,352

505

265

7,2t5

39,4t9

s,39 l

23,025

6,1 35

2007 General Obligation Bonds issued to the Massachusetts Wate¡ Pollution
Abatement Trust The Bonds are payable in varying principal amounts at

an average coupon rate of 2.41%o with a final payment due Júy 15,2037 . 10,875

2008 General Obligation Bonds payable in varying annual instalhnents
at an average coupon rate of 4.16Yo with a final payment due l|;4ay 1,2028. 6,860

2009 Gene¡al Obligation Bonds issued to the Massachusetts Water Pollution
Abatement Trust. The Bonds are payable in varying principal amounts at

an average couponraTe of2.42%owith a final payment due July 15, 2038. 21,4?2

201 1 General Obligation Bonds issued to the Massachusetts Water Pollution
Abatement Trust. The Bonds are payable in varying principal amounts at

an average couponrate of 2.4}o/owith a final payment due May I ,2040. 21,325
2011 Gene¡al Obligation Bonds issued to the Massachusetts Water Pollution

Abatement Trust. The Bonds are payable in varying principal amounts at

an average coupon rate of 2.4}"/owitha final payment due May I , 2040. 7,108

2012 Gene¡al Obligation Bonds issued to the Massachusetts Water Pollution
Abatement Trust. The Bonds are payable in varying principal amounts at

an avenrge coupon rate of2.00% with a final payrnent due July 15, 2032. 20,929
2012 General Obligation Bonds payable in varying prilcipal amounts at an

averagecouponrateof3.666%withafinalpaymentdueApril 15,2032. 4,000

Unarnortized bond premiums and defened refunding losses I,171
OPEB 1,863

Accrued sick leave 406

Total long-termobligations 182,316

Less portion due within one year (6,188)

Amount due in more than one year S 176,128
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Jtne 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Scheduled bond principal and interest repayments and related anticipated subsidies are as follows:

Gross payments Anticipated Net
subsidy paymentsPrincipal Interest Total

Year ending June 30:

2073
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2041

$ 6,102
1,099
7,327

7,564

7,797
35,728
34,644

36,433
28,321

7,86t

I 1,5 14

12,482
12,456

12,421
12,374

54,183
47,758
43,785
30,645

8,172
246,396

t,203
1,164

1,124
1,082

t,037
3,210
2,619
2,049

997

),4,485

10,311

11,318

11,332

11,345
11,337

51,513

45,139

41,136
29,648

8,172

_nt9Jl__17WlS_

5,412

5,383
5,129
4,963
4,577

19,055
13,rl4
7,352
2,324

311

61,5n

@) Díscretely Presented Component Units - ú/'RA

On March 24, 1997, the WRA and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement (Agreement)
concerning funding initiatives of the WRA. On December 74,2000, the WRA voted to authorize the
execution of any legal document in any effort to secure the repayment to the City of any funds the
City may provide to finance the WRA's initiatives. Pursuant to the Agreement and the vote of the
WRA on December 74, 2000, the WRA and City have executed several amendments to the
Agreement whereby the City has agreed to loan the WRA various amounts at varying interest rates
(ranging from3.2%oto 4.9%) and maturity dates.

Details related to notes payable to the City at June 30,2072, are as follows:

Project

Outstanding
at June 30,

20tt Issued Redeemed

Outstanding
at June 30,

2012

Union Station - Building Fit Out
Union Station - Operating
Union Station - Bus Ports
General and Administrative

Total

2,984
3,169

484
79

84

315

3,068
3,484

484
79

82
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACIIUSETTS

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Debt service requirements in future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Írterest Total

2013
20r4
2015

Total $ 7,115 __Uë_ 8,450

(12) Temporary Borrowings

(ø) Prímary Government

Under state law and by authorization of the City Council, the City is authorized to borrow on a
temporary basis to fund the following:

o Current operating costs prior to the collection ofrevenues through the issuance ofrevenue or
tax anticipation notes (RANs or TANs);

. Special revenue, capital project, and enterprise fund costs incurred prior to obtaining
permanent financing through the issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANs); and

o Federal and state aided capital projects and other program expenditures prior to receiving
reimbursement through the issuance of federal and state aid anticipation notes (FAANs and
SAANs).

Temporary loans are general obligations of the City and carry maturity dates limited by statute.
Interest expenditures/expenses on temporary borrowings for the year ended June 30, 2012 in the
general fund, debt service fund, nonmajor governmental funds, and enterprise funds were $606.

$ 6,050 1,1 16 7 ,166
315 28 343
750 191 941
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(In thousands of dollars)

At June 30, 2012, the following 1.25% to 2.00%o BANs
outstanding:

(maturing through November 8, 2012) were

Outstanding
as of

June 30,2011 Additions Reductions

Outstanding
as of

June 30,2012
Bond anticipation notes

payable:

School $

General

Water

Sewer

Golf course (nonmajor)
Total $

Short-term notes

Additions Reductions

30,843

3,405

6,760

75

8,430
39,620

10,023

14,735

105

30,763

3,405

6,760

155

8,430
39,700

10,023

74,135

25

41,083 72,313 41,083 72,313

(b) Dìscretely Presented Component Units - The District

The District issues short-term notes as preliminary financing for major capital additions. Notes
payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Outstanding
as of

June 30,2011
5,511

Outstanding
as of

June 30,2012
r2,7s9 r8,270
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

June 30,2072

(Lr thousands of dollars)

(13) InterfundTransfers

Transfers and their purposes during the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Governmtrtal fuds
Debt School Ofher colf

Ceneral Senice Grant Citysquare Gov'tal Water Sewer Àirport Fmd
Fúd Fund FunL ____IglL Funds Futrd Fud Fund (Nonmjor)

Origjnal budget:

Geno¿ltund-tofunddebtpalments $ (13,84?) 11,84'l
Cmetery ewe - to fund parks

md cmetery 132 (132)
Enterpris6-totunddebtpa)ments 1,508 (S4l) (641) - (24)
Ajd to highways Chapts 90 - ro frÐd

public works administút¡on 3't3 (j:'3)
Parking - to tund puking opmtions 453 (453)
Sqvtr æmection fe6 - to frtnd

public\vo¡ksadmjn¡stútion ll8 - (llS)
CoNtruction pmits - to fund

public rvorks administation 145 - (l 45)
Conswat¡on f6 - to fund

genGl tund opdations 3l - (j t)
DCU Debt sflice - to ftnd

marketing cosb 150 (150)
Sale of cmetery lob Ðd gúv6 - to

fund parks úd cemetery ofEÉtions 41 (43)
suÞtorar (to¡rÐ ß.6n - -- - (12Þ (84Ð (64t) . (rÐ

Subsequent hnsa6:
Gensal fund to fr¡nd

DCU centq opmtions (10?) - 102
Sale ofa¡rport to fund

R€l 6tate sal6 892 (S92)
DCU debt swice - to fund

p¡omotion oftourim 66 (66)

Cable acc6s gfft - to fùnd

educationâl øble 518 (5 I B)
Dmage settlments - to reimbuce fo¡

dmage to City propefry ll9 (ll9)
Pmium on lods - to fund

bond issuanæ cosls 358 - (358)
ÌVattropmtioß-tofundr€l6bteßfle 801 (S0l)
Cmqal fund - to frrnd DCU

opffitìoß (694) - 694
Schoolgfft fund to @pitalprojæt

acquis¡tjon (39) - 39
Gøml tund - to tund poliæ salaie (150) - 350
Cenral fu¡d - to fund ne¡ghboñood

slab¡l¡ation grt (14) - 14slab¡l¡ation gtut (14) - 14

Genffil tund - to tund golf opûations (158) - t5B
Central fund - to fund ømuni€tion gøt (24) - 24
Capìlal prcjæts - to frrnd debt palm€nts - 49 (49)
Gmffil tund - to tund debt pa)ments (122) 222

Goltdebt tæftred to govmmental * t''j
To close airpod lo gen@ltund 430 (430)
To fmsfd behvffi €piial prcjæb funds - 953
To trdsfft beNm øpital prcjæß tunds (953)
Chaplngo - to tund @pital €quipmenr 150
Chapttr 90 - to tund capital equipmf,t (l 50)
Comunity dwdopmf,t gmt fa¡s[6 4l't
Communiry developmot grt tusf6 Øl'l)
Pa*ing ræeipls to fund off-stræt parkjng 1.156
P¿Jl<ing ræeipß to fund oF-sbæt park¡ng (3,356)
G@wood ledfill to fund vtrious 96'l
Grqwood lMdfill to tund võious (96j)
HOME grt hnslq 32
HOME grr tusftr ç2)

Total transfm,net $ (lt¡S-t 1190, 47g 
--@ 

-- 
626 (t,644) (641; (1,322) 241

' Kspr6mß ùe tusttr ol pnncrpal balMæ of long{m debt fÌom the Golf Enteç,rise flnd to Covmotal Activitic
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(In thousands of dollars)

(14) Environmental Remediation - The District

Plant Improvements

Phase I

Phase II

Phase III
Phase fV

In settlement of its appeal of its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NTPDES) permit,
the District entered into a consent agreement with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to
implement a plant improvement plan that will achieve more stringent discharge standards within the
coming 15 years. The plan was developed through District facilities planning, completed to identify
the most cost-effective approach to modernizing lhe District's 35-year-old plant and achieving
revised standards for the Blackstone River.

The plan envisioned completion of design and construction of the facilities needed to achieve new
standards by August 2009 with design and construction of other facilities (solids management
facilities and future capacities) occurring on an as-needed basis. This resulted in a four phased
approach to construction of the facilities.

Peak fl ow management, headworks, pnmary treatment, disinfection,
odor control, and miscellaneous other support systems. (approx. $67,900)

Advanced treatment facilities required for projected20ll flows.
(approx. $88,500)

Solids management facilities. (approx. $3 1,000)
Facilities required for future flows (beyond20ll). (approx. $15,000)

The above referenced costs are final costs for Phases I and II and estimated final costs for Phase III
at 90%o construction completion. Phase IV is not required. The total cost is estimated to be
approximately $202,400.

The District intends to finance the above costs through long-term borrowing. As of Jttne30,2Ol2,
the District has spent and capitalized approximately $187,200, including capitalized interest of
$8,799.

The District is also involved in a legal appeal of revised NPDES permit limits imposed in 2008.
These limits are currently stayed by the First Circuit Court of Appeals. Compliance with the terms
of the contested permit would require another substantial capital investment. In addition, Phase fV
identifred above may be modified based upon the outcome of the appeal.

Blackstone River Modelíng Study

The District is conducting a modeling study of the Blackstone River to better understand the impact
of water quality management decisions on the fuver. Identiffing and solving the real problems of
the River will start with having better tools to analyze the ptzzle. For this reason, the District has
initiated development of a new model of the River that starts to integrate all these effects.
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(In thousands of dollars)

The District does not think these initial efforts will be the end of the need to develop better tools for
the River. This will be a process of continuing enhancements; as the District better understands the
River, it will invariably have to make modifications and improvements to both the model and its
treatment facilities.

The estimated cost of the study is approximately $2,559 and will be financed through long-term
borrowing. As of June 30, 2012, the District has spent and capitalized approxim ately $2,329 .

Solar Photovoltaíc System:

The District was selected by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection to
participate in a statewide solar photovoltaic project. The proposed system would include a 337
kilowatt ground-mounted system installed on the plant site. The estimated cost of the project is
approximately $3,000 and will be funded by a federal grant through the ARRA program. Project
construction is scheduled to be complete in 2013. As of June 30, 2012,Ihe District has spent and
capitalized 52,536.

(15) Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, property and casualty, workers'
compensation, unemployment, and employee health and life insurance claims.

Certain City buildings are fully insured against fire, theft, and natural disaster to the extent that losses
exceed $500 per incident. All City buildings have boiler and machinery insurance. The City is selÊinsured
for other types of general liability; however, Chapter 258 of Massachusetts General Laws limits the City's
liability to a maximum of $100 per claimant in all matters except actions relating to federal civil rights,
eminent domain, and breach of contract. The City is also self-insured for unemployment and workers'
compensation.

The City provides a variety of health insurance benefits to employees including Blue Cross/Blue Shield
Blue Choice, Medex, Master Medical and Managed Blue as well as Fallon Direct, Select and Senior plans.
The partially selÊinsured Blue Choice, Fallon, Medex and Master Medical plans are paid through an
established internal service fund based on total claims, while the Managed Blue and Fallon Senior plans
are based on premiums. Specific stop loss insurance is purchased for claims that exceed $225 for each
participating member of the self-insured health plans. 25Vo of employee contributions are made. The
remainder of such costs is funded by the City. The City provides $5 of term life insurance benefits to its
employees. The City also provides health and life insurance benefits to certain retirees, as discussed in
note 6.

Liabilities for self-insured judgments and claims are recorded in the basic financial statements if it is
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The City accounts for
its self-insurance costs that have matured in the general fund in the fund-basis statements.

The City has established a liability for health claims based on actual amounts paid two months subsequent
to year-end (provided by a third-party administrator) and an estimate of future claims based on historical
trends.
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(In thousands of dollars)

The City has established a liability for judgments and claims based on a case-by-case review of all known
claims, estimates of losses incurred but not reported, incremental costs incurred only because of claims,
historical trends of previous years, and attorneys' estimates of pending matters and lawsuits in which the
City is involved.

Changes in the self-insurance liability for health claims for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 201I were
as follows:

20t2 20tl
Health claims, beginning of year

Incurred claims

Payrnents of claims attributable to events of the
current and prior f,iscal years

Health claims, end of year

Judgments and claims, beginning of year

Additions to estimated claims liability
Payments of claims attributable to events of the

current and prior fiscal years:

Court judgments and legal settlements

Workers' compensation

Judgments and claims, end of year

Judgments and claims consisted of the following at June 30:

Workers' compensation

Court judgments and legal settlements

s 6,729

75,839

(76,r44)

8 6,424

5,427

83,585

(82,283)

6,729

Changes in judgments and claims liability for the years ended June 30, 2072 and2011 were as follows:

2012 20tt
s 12,362 16,532

1,361 466

(2s7)
(es0)

(7s6)
(3,880)

12,362$ 12,522

2012 20tl
$ 11,067 17,735

1,455 627

s 12,522 72,362

The fiscal 2012liability for judgments and claims consist of governmental and business-type activities in
the amount of $11,098 aîd51,424 respectively.
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Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the
past three years. The liability for workers' compensation is reported at net present value using a discount
rate of 5.5%o.

There are various other pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City and its legal
counsel estimate that the potential claims against the City not recorded in the accompanying basic financial
statements resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the City's financial position.

(16) Fund Balances

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregale in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are
detailed as follows:

CitySquare
Debt

Service

Other Total

School governmental Governmental
Grants funds Funds

Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal...,

Restricted:
oPEB.........

3,108

13,918

8,600
2,714

I
560

r,652
2,044

115

1,338

3,727
112

20,863

I 3,91 8

1,444
Public wo¡ks.......
School grants.. 7,878

t,444
3,1 08
'7,878

8,600
2,'n4

1

560
1,652
2,044

115

1,338
3,727

r12

City gants.....
School lunch..
Police auxiliary
Off-street parking.................
City revolving funds............
School revolving funds........
Community developrnent........
Workforce Central................
Capital.........
Permanent fund expendable.....

Sub-total -Restricted......... 1,444 3,108 7,878 33,293

Committed:
Debt service......
Receipts reserved

Sub-total - Cor¡mitted

Unassigned... 25,520

Total fund balances............. ..... $ 26,964 3, 108 12,034 7 ,878

t7,02; ä"3;:

17,023 29,057

(35,686) (10,166)

16,118 66,t02

t2,034
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(17) Fund Deficits

The following funds had deficits at June 30,2012:

Capital Projects Funds: Special Revenue Funß
DCU construction $ 313 DCU Center S 882
Street and sidewalk 7,592
Rehabilitation of public buildings 19,513

Capital equipment 1,572

School construction 3,965
Parks improvements I,849

These deficits will be funded in future fiscal years via long-term bond issues, charges for services and
intergovernmental revenues.

(18) Sale of Airport

As of July 7,2010, the majority of the Worcester Regional Airport's (Airport) assets were sold by the City
to the Massachusetts Port Authority (the Authority). The transaction involved the transfer of legal title to
the majority of the real, personal and intangible property of the Airport. The only Airport assets retained
by the City include various parcels of land valued at approximately $2,600.

The loss on the disposal of the aþort was accrued and reported in the City's fiscal year 2011 financial
statements. The only financial activities of the Airport Enterprise Fund during fiscal year 2012 were cash
receipts and disbursements for receivables and payables that were outstanding as of June 30,2011, as well
as the transfer of remaining net assets to other City funds.

As of July 1, 2011, the City was no longer acting as the employer for the Airport's employees and was no
longer responsible for maintaining the operations of the Airport.

(19) Future Implementation of GASB Pronouncements

The GASB has issued the following statements:

Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Service Concession Arrangemenls, which is
required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. Management is currently evaluating the effect that
this Statement will have on the basic financial statements.

Statement No. 61 , The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 34,whichis required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013, Management does not believe
the implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.
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Statement No. 62, Codffication of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, whichis required to be implemented during fiscal
year 2013. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will impact the basic
financial statements.

Statement No. 63 , Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. The implementation of this
Statement will require a change to the title of the Statement of Net Assets to the Statement of Net Position.

Statement No. 65 ,Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required to be
implemented during fiscal year 2074. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement
will significantly impact the basic financial statements.

Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 an amendment of GASB Statements No. I0 and No. 62,
which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. Manaqement does not believe the
implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

Statement No. 67, Financial Reportingþr Pension Plans - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25,
which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. The implementation of this Statement will
require a change to the title of the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets to the Statement of Fiduciary Net
Position, as well as expanded note disclosures and required supplementary information.

Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement
No. 27, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2015. The implementation of this
Statement will represent a significant change in the accounting and reporting of pension expense and the
related liability. For the first time, the City will be required to recognize its long-term obligation for
pension benefits as a liability and to more comprehensively measure the annual costs of pension benefits.
The implementation of this Statement also expands pension related note disclosures and required
supplementary information.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget
Original

s 223,669,013

10,900,000

Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

2,198,814

RE\rENI]ES
Property taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes

Penalties and interest on taxes:

Property taxes

Tax titles
Motor vehicle excise

Special assessments

Other taxes and in-lieu payments:

In lieu oftaxes
Special assessments

Meals tax

Hotel/motel tax

Licenses and permits:

Clerk
Code Inspection

Fire
Health
License Commission:

Liquor licenses

Other
Police
Public Works

Intergovemmental:

State local aid

State school construction aid

School related Federal Medicare
Federal indirect cost reimbursements

224,579,133 227,371,947

10,900,000 1t,849,289 949,289

1,070,700

286,300

967,000

1,010,100

286,300

967,000
48,000

1,166,639

618,307

1,007,863

78,817

95,939

332,001

40,863

30,81748.000

2,372,000 2,372,000 2,8',71,626 499,626

850,000

370,000

2,110,000

730,000

850,000

370,000

2,110,000

730,000

1,149,910

325,960

2,198,361
'165,379

299,910
(44,040)

88,361

3s,379
4,060,000 4,060,000 4,439,670

l3 I ,200
2,087,250

221,27 5

463,630

781,810

45,950

80,095

226,700

176,926

2,971,472

208,313

577,014

800,819

67,30',7

90,571

31.8,047

319,610

45,126

884,222
(12,962)

113,384

19,009

21,357

10,416

91,347

13t,200
2,097,250

221,27 5

463,630

781,810

45,950

80,095

226,100

4,037,910

242,195,910

15,203,374

3,500,000

r,950,000

4,031,9t0 s,210,469 1,r72,559

244,327,592
15,203,374

2,600,000

244,461,246

15,203,314

3,426,026

139,654

826,026

262,939,294
1,950,000 t,890,122 (59,278)

264,080,966 264,981,368 906,402
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget

Original Final

1,859,000

891,000

1,859,000

891,000

7,942,428

902,908

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

83,428

I 1,908

Actual
Fines and forfeitures:

Parking hnes

Court fines

Investment earnings

Charges for services:

Airport land lease

Assessor

Auditorium
Clerk
Cable TV
Communications

Elder Affairs
Fire

Health

Hope Cemetery

Human Resources

Library
Messenger

Parks

Planning
Police

Public Works

Purchasing

Schools

Trailer coach park

Trash bags

Treasurer

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

2,750,000 2,750,000 2,945,336 95,336

300,000 300,000 99,941

8,000

235,000

530,000

20,000

350

40,000

198,800

21,470

230,000

55,000

5,500

50,000

70,300

466,500
7,500

254,500

8,000

235,000

530,000

20,000

350

40,000

198,800

2r,410
230,000

55,000

5,500

50,000

70,300

466,500
7,500

2s4,500

4,000

3,2oo,ooo

100,000

7,050

128,140

565,171

23,007

1,607

49,121

257,038
37,557

260,843

3,400

43,132

562

7 5,739

98,366

630,773

10,011

278,545

10,870

4,128
3,2r4,989

(200,053)

100,000

(e50)

(l 06,860)

35,77r
3,007

1,2s7

9,r21
58,238

16,087

30,843

3,400
(1 1,868)

(4,938)

25,739

28,066
164,273

2,511

24,045
10,870

128

14,989

4,000

3,200,000

15.000 15,000 t3,699 (1,301)

5,417,920 5,411,920 5,913,754 401,834

654,500 6s4,s00 r,3 18,000 663,500

51,6,994,627 7,666,917

(Continued)
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EXPENDITTIRES
General government:

Council:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Mayor:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Manager:

Salaries:

Executive office
Planning & Development

Ordinary maintenance:

Executive office
Planning & Development

Tourism promotion

Auditor:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Administration & Finance:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Treasurer and Collector:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Assessor:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

CITY OF' WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget

Original Final

$ 324,000

26,96',7

350,967

101,398

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

716,391

880,363

1,554,280

109,s90

216,000
178,387

r 8,844

88

18,932

r,418

550,149 1,479

1,063,266 1,05r,964 11,302

9,332995,972 986,640

2,059,238 2,039,604 20,634

324,000 310,750 13,250

26,861 21,574 5,293

350,86'7 332,324 18,543

101,398 99,925 r,413

t0'73.277 5,7',17 5,670

104,675 107,175 105,595 1,590

145,128599,891

689,618

7,334,290

90,590

571,263

880,363

1,550,602

80,009

216,000

3,299,237

3,678
29,s9r

2,71.4,379 3,476,624

475,601 480,601 46r,757
82,559 82,559 82,471

558,1 60 563,160 544,228

37',7,040

70,664

480,733 479,255
70,894 70,894

447,704 551,627

1,030,005

641,676

r,67l,6gl

517,528

77,454

594,992

s63,550

485,29'7

l,o4g,g47

563,409

485, I 36

141

161

302

94

1,049,545
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CITY OF' WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget

Original Final

1,200 1,200

License Commission:

Ordinary maintenance

Law:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Casualty insurance

Court judgments

Clerk:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Messenger:

Ordinary maintenance

Election Commission:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Purchasing:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Technical services:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Capital

Human Resources:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Total general govemment

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

400800

694,042

122,842

119,948

378, I 00

708,506

r41,842
119,948

3 53,1 00

708,506

133,431

89,128

34',7,203

r4,40s
30,820

5,891

51,722r,314,932 1,329,396 1,278,274

511,7',|8

36,024

507,43r
36,024

s06,629

33,565

540,194

802

2,459

3,261541,802 543,455

314,400 364.900 354,143 10,757

339,699

I 10,885

450,584

192,527

14,59s

1,557,393

903,495

589,549 582,052

470,564

I 18,985

469,871 693

6,804112.181

1,497

192,527

t4,59s

r,603,488
903,495

350,000

1,585,829

881,420

349,999

178,995

t2,600
13,532

l,gg5
207.122 201,122 t9l,s9s t5,527

11,659

22,075

I
2,460,888 2,856,983 2,87'7,248 39,135

750,',135 I50,735 680,961 69,768

9,r1923',7.701 244,101 235,582

988,436 99s,436 916,549 78,887

12,727,8t2 447,042

95

t5,045,s79 14,s98,s31
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CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACIIUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget
Original Final Actual

Public safety:

Police:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Capital

Fire:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Capital

Inspectional services :

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Communications:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Total public safety

Health and human services:

Health:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Elder Affairs:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Workforce Central:

Salaries

Total health and human services

39,249,230 4r,167,536 41,r57,354

37,415,385

1,933,945

39,033,691

7,933,945

200,000

39,030,861

7,931,074

195,419

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

2,830
2,lll,
4,5g1

10,192

75,236

3 8,866

9,021

63,r23

31,188,442

994,541

25,000

30,890,233

1,305,40'/

31,0r7

30,874,991

7,266,541
2',t.996

32,207,983 32,232,651 32,169,534

2,48r,306
212,707

2,'754,013

2,430,961

300,052

2,331,222

288,1 3 1

2,625,353

93,739

tl,921

1,800,009

313.016

l,gog,34o
313,076

r,s85,943

105,660

223,391

39,s 10

2,731,013

273.566
2,113,095 2,122,416 1,859,509

76,324,311 78,253,622 11,81r,750

262,907

441,812

226,952
20,000

246,952

121,462

3 5,016

156,478 90,474

2r1,877
35,075

90,415

59

246,952

288,58 I 288,581

322,704

281,598

319,9r4
983

2,790297.704

586,285 61r,285 607,512 3,773

72 72,508

905,745 166.7 55

508 72,508

96

930,745 763,990
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Education:

Public Schools:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Capital

Total education

Public works:

Department of Public Works:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Capital
Snow and ice removal

Street lighting

Union Station:

Ordinary maintenance

Total public works

Culture and recreation:

Parks and Cemetery:

Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Public Library:
Salaries

Ordinary maintenance

Auditorium:
Ordinary maintenance

DCU Center:

Ordinary maintenance

Debt service

Total culture and recreation

CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACTIUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget
Original

$ 173,920,846

47,496,421

245,000

221,662,267

Final

222,923,112 222922,',770

17 5,682,357

46,9',14,446

266,909

t7 5,68t,563
46,974,298

266,909

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

794

148

Acfual

942

5,368,506

6,544,666

3, I s6,883

1,987,828

4,891,s02
6,907,670

150,000

3,546,355

2,337,928

11 ,82'7,355

4,936,534
6,739,350

150,000

3,546,355
2,331,828

17,6t0,067 2r'7,288

54,968

r62,320

17,0s7,883

420 r28 470,128 50,000

267,288

420,128

I'7,478,011 18,297,483 I 8,030, I 95

2,943,293

806,256

2,943,293

1,13 8,833

2,117,805
1,133,134

3,910,939

2,800,061

l,32l,o7l
4,t21,132

65,488

5,699

71,1873,649,549 3,982,126

2,800,091

1,321,829

2,923,216

1,298,',l04

30

758

4,r21,920 4,r2t,920 788

721,506 121,506 91,009 30,49'l

342,097

352,253

694,350

8.581.32s 102,412

97

8.225,552 8,123,080
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Intergovernmental:

Health insurance - retirees

Regional planning
Regional Transit Authority
Air pollution control
Charter Schools

School choice

Special education - Chapter 7 66

Registry parking ticket surcharge

Total intergovemmental

Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Pension obligation bond:

Municipal departments:

Principal
Interest

Enterprise funds (interest)

Public schools (interest)

Total debt service

Fringe benefits:

Retirement:

Contributory pensions:

Municipal deparlments

Public Schools

Noncontributory pensions:

Municipal departments

Public Schools

CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

Forthe Fiscal YearEnded June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget

Original

$ 16,658

40,114

2,794,995

38,947

24,354,752

1,943,509

5',77,640

29,7 56,605

Final

29,843,964 29,525,605 318,359

Actual

16,658

43,617

2,616,740

38,947

24,056,471

2,177,845

146,481

428,840

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

(2,023)

453,633

(246,391)
(3s,6s4)

148,800

16,65 8

41,594

2,616,140

38,94',7

24,510,704

l,g3l,44g
I 10,833

577.640

23,4s8,306

7,302,579

3,209,269

7,258,734

1,589,320

23,461,830
7,041,519

3,209,269

7,2s8,134
1,s89,320

4,s81,402

47,r47,474

4,581,402

23,434,115

6,994,671

3,209,269

7,259,134

1,599,320

4,58r,402

2'.7,715

52,848

4',1 ,3gg,g50 47,066,911 80,563

18,572,712

7,550,624

147,920

211,448

18,592,608
'7,782,712

141,920

114,552

18,s64,016

7,182,112

126,098

174,552

28,592

21,822

26,422,104 26,091,792 26,047,378 50,414
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Budget

Original Final Actual
Workers' and unemployment comp. :

Workers' compensation:

Municipal departments

Public Schools

Public safety injured on duty
Unemployment compensation:

Municipal departments

Public Schools

Group insurance:

Municipal departments

Public Schools

Total fringe benefits

Contingency

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOTIRCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Premium on loans
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balance

Budgetary fund balance - beginning
Budgetary fund balance - ending

2,796,779 2,921,355 2,86r,029

1,087,681

322,700

3 89,098

500,000

487,300

1,292,752

508,415

389,098

106,400

625,290

1,233,s83

508,415

389,074

104,667

625,290

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

58,s69

24

1,733

60,326

23,525,528

39,040,672

62,566,200

91,'775,683

21,ss0,327

37,091,129

21,331,671

37,089,347

218,656
t;'t82

58,647,456 58,421,018 220,438

87,660,603 81,329,425 337,118

250,000 5',7,710 57 .710

506,866,109

10,127,918

508,386,444 506,112,263 2,2t4,t81

10,759,985 20,641,083

4,369,794
(13,847,112)

300,000
(9,177,918)

950,000

14,259,091

$ 15,209,081

7,076,678
(15,411,358)

300,000

1,076,678
(15,411,358)

4',l8,707

9,881 ,098

r78,101
(8,034,680) (1,855,973) 118,701

2,725,305 r2,'785,110 10,059,805

14,259,081 14,259,081

16,984,386 27,044,191 10,059,805

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information - Pension Plan and OPEB Schedules

June 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

Pension Plan Schedules

The following schedules provide information related to the WRS as a whole, for which the City is one
participating employer:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDTNG PROGRESS (WRS)

(a)

Actuarial Actuarial
Valuation Value of Plan

Date Assets

(b) (b - a)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial
Accrued Accrued
Liability Liability

837,608 120,81 1

889,924 t30,574
929,569 297,615

981,692 308,182

7,025,076 300,079

1,051,191 339,091

(a/b) (c)

Funded Covered

Ratio (%) Payroll

85.58 $ 152,838

85.58 156,585

85.33 166,050

67.98 166,392

68.80 1.57,721

67.74 159,670

U1t2007 $

llU2008
1tU2009

U1l20r0
1lU20rl
11112012

716,797

759,4r0
631,894

679,5r0
724,998

772,770

(b - a)/c

UAAL as a

Percent of
Covered

Payroll (Yo)

79.05

83.35

r79.27
r85.21

1,90.26

2t2.36

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTTONS (WRS)

Year Ended Annual Required
December 31 Contributions

Percentage ofAnnual
Required Contributed (%)

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

20ll

23,355
24,166

24,947

28,505

29,770

32,106

100

100

100

100

101

100

100



CITY OF WORCESTBR, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information - Pension Plan and OPEB Schedules

June 30,2012

(In thousands of dollars)

The following schedule provides information related to the City's portion of the WRS ARC:

CITY SHARE OF WRS ARC

Year Ended

Percentage City ARC as a

of ARC Percentage of

90.9

9t.4
9t.2
9r.6
9t.6
90.9

June 30 ARC Contributed (%) WRS ARC (%)

2007 s 27,24t 100

2008 22,089 100

2009 22,142 100

2010 26,117 100

20tl 27,217 101

20t2 29,720 100

OPEB Schedule

The following schedule provides information related to the City's OPEB plan:

SCHEDT]LES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded

UAAL as a

Percentage

Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (Ð (B) (B-A) (A/B) (c) ((B-Ayc)

06130108 $ 1,749,294 l,l4g,2g4 0.0% $ 320,372 358%
07101109 - 765,372 765,312 0.0% 302,802 253%
07l0vr1 - 636,335 636,335 0.0% 313,753 203%

The signihcant changes to the methods and assumptions used in the actuarial valuations identified above that
impacted trends in the schedules of funding progress are as follows:

. The 07101109 valuation reflects the City's adoption of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 328, Section
18, which shifted certain other postemployment benefits costs from the City to a Medicare extension
program

o The 07101109 and07l01lI1 valuations reflect the City's favorable claims experience during the periods
between the valuations
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSBTTS

Notes to Required Supplementary Lrformation

Jtne 30,2072

(In thousands of dollars)

Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Pursuant to Chapter 44, Section 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws, the City adopts an annual budget for all
general fund functions as well as for those enterprise funds for which the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53F
I12have been adopted.

All portions of the annual budget, except for that of public schools, are prepared under the direction of the City
Manager. The School Department budget is prepared under the direction of the Superintendent. The budget must
be approved by the City Council, which may reduce or reject any item in the budget but may not increase or add

items without the recommendation of the City Manager. The level of expenditure may not legally exceed
appropriations for each department or undertaking in the categories of salaries and wages, ordinary maintenance
and capital outlays.

Once adopted, budgets within the above categories may not be amended by management without seeking City
Council approval.

In fiscal 2012,Ihe original general fund expenditure budget was increased by $1,520.

The City's annual budget is prepared on a basis other than GAAP. The "actual" results columns of the Schedule
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis are presented
on a "budgetary basis" to provide a meaningful comparison with the budgets.

The following reconciliation summarizes the differences between budgetary and GAAP-basis accounting
principles for the year ended Jtne 30,2012:

General fund:

As reported on a budgetary basis

Reclassify stabilization fund

Reclassify OPEB reserve

MTRS on-behalf payments

COLA on-behalf payments

Adjustment of revenues to a modified basis

Adjustment of expenditures for GAAP accruals

As reported on a

GAAP basis

Revenues

$ 526,813

55,135

1,591

(1,83 e)

$ 581,706

Expenditures

506,112

55,135

1,597

(33e)

OFS/OFU Net Change in
Net Fund Balance

(7,8s6)
(2,080)

(1,070)

12,785

(2,080)

(1,070)

(l,83 9)

339

s62,s65 (l 1,006)

The major differences between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are stabilization and OPEB reserve funds
are reported in the general fund on a GAAP basis only; reveilres are recorded when cash is received (budgetary),

as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP); claims and certain other expenditures are recorded as

expenditures when paid (budgetary), as opposed to a liability when incurred (GAAP); and MTRS and COLA on-
behalf payments are recorded on a GAAP basis only.

8,13 5
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CITY OF WORCBSTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Statements and Schedules

June 30,2012

Nonmøior Governntental Funds - A combining balance sheet and combining statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances is provided for other (nonmajor) governmental funds.

Special Revenue

Special revenue funds are used to account for and reporl the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than capital projects.

DCU Center - accounts for the operations of the City's civic center.

School Lunch - accounts for the operations of the public school lunch program.

Police Auxiliary - accounts for police off-duty details.

Off-Street Parking - accounts for the operation of the City's parking garages, on-street meters and off-street
parking lots.

City Revolving accounts for City activities that are allowed, by an act of the state legislature, to use program
revenues for operating expenditures.

School Revolving - accounts for school activities that are allowed, by an act of the state legislature, to use
program revenues for operating expenditures.

Receipts Reserved - accounts for revenues reserved for appropriation that have been segregated by law or
administrative action.

Community Development- accounts for grants received from the U.S.Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

Workforce Central - accounts for revenue received from the U.S. Department of Labor to assist individuals to
become productive members of the labor force.

City Grants - accounts for various grants received from the federal and state governments for programs
administered by City departments.

Capital Projects

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report f,rnancial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

DCU Center Construction - accounts for improvements to the City's civic center.

Street and Sidewalk - accounts for the construction and improvement of streets and sidewalks.

Rehabilitation of Public Buildings - accounts for improvements to City owned buildings.

Capital Equipment - accounts for the acquisition of equipment.

School Construction - accounts for the construction and rehabilitation of school buildings.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Statements and Schedules

Jtne 30,2012

Parks Improvements - accounts for grants and bond proceeds used for parks improvements.

Union Station Garage - accounts for financial resources used for the Union Station Garage construction.

Other - accounts for various small construction projects.

Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that suppof the government's programs and benefit the government
or its citizenry.

Hope Cemetery - accounts for funds used for the perpetual care of the municipal cemetery.

Health Department - accounts for funds used for public health purposes.

Libraries - accounts for funds held in trust for the City's public libraries.

Schools - accounts for funds held in trust to provide scholarships for qualified students.

Parks - accounts for funds held in trust to improve the City's parks.

Police - accounts for funds held in trust to beautiff the landscape at the police headquarters building.

Public Works - accounts for funds held in trust to provide street lighting.

Memorial - accounts for funds held in trust to maintain various monuments and fountains.

Other - accounts for various trusts.

Enterprise Funds - Separate schedules ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance - budget and
actual - budgetary basis are provided for the airport, golf course (nonmajor), sewer and water enterprise funds.
The "actual" results columns of the Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis are presented on a "budgetary basis" to provide a meaningful comparison
with the budgets. Actual amounts can vary from GAAP amounts.

Cøpítøl Ass¿fs - Two separate schedules are provided for capital assets used in the operation of governmental
activities.

Agency Funds - The ageîcy fund is a fiduciary fund used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds

June30,2012

Special Revenue Funds

DCU
Center

School
Lunch

2,9t8,613

Police
Auxiliary

153,269

896,248

Off-Street City
Parking RevolvingAssets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Receivables
Due Íiom other govemments

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Temporary loans
Deferred revenue
Othe¡ liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
fund balances

r 35,000 559,904 r,665,974

506,412

$ 135,000 2,918,613 |,049,sr1 ssg,904 2,172,386

1 ,017,350

1,017,350

(882,350)

(882,350)

$ 135,000

2,713,5',76

1,048,470

1,047

205,037 152,222

896,248

35 14,335

506,412

205,037 35 520,747

ss9,869 I ,651,639

2,713,576 t,047 559,869 1 ,651,639

2,918,613 1,049,517 2,172,386
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A-1

Sp.ecial Revenue Funds

Receipts Community
Reserved Development

8,1 10,191

1,026J62

9,t36,953

536,790

2,Q57,&94 17,023,4t2 143,218 1,410,463

27,834 72,795

9,r36,9s3 36,607 36A

ta7



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds

Iune30,2012

DCU Center
Construction

Street and
Sidewalk

of Public Capital
Buildings Equipment

School
ConstructionAssets:

Cash and cash equivalmts
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Receivables
Due from othe¡ govemments

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Temporary loans
Defer¡ed revenue
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabìlities and
fund balances

8,994,739

273,403

$ 1,609,55 I 9,268,142

1 ,609,551 2,7 t8,576 827,470 3,578,008

lt2,t34

I ,81 0,000

2,027,094
673,500

I 4,1 60,000

24,659

2,375,000

281,478
111,202

7,150,000

2,7t8,576

4,391,333
1,255,387

16,585,000

827,470 3,578,008

1,922,134

(3 12,583)

(3 1 2,583)

$ 1,609,551

16,860,594

(7,se2,4s2)

(7,s92,4s2)

9,268,142

22,231,720

(19,s13,144)

(19,513,144)

2:7t8,576

2,399,659

(t,s72,189)

(1,s72,189)

82'7,470

7,s42,680

(3,964,672)

(3,964,672)

3,578,008
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Caoitaì Proiects Funds

Parks Union Station
Improyen-rents Garage

3,516,015 2,452,,669

3,516,015 2,452,669

5,364,959

(1,848,944)

(1,848,944)

3,516,015



CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Iune30,2012

Permanent Funds

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Receivables
Due from other governments

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Temporary loans
Deferred revenue
Othe¡ liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Conrmitted
Unassigned

Hope
Cemetery

t26,878
2,627,112

Health
Department

84,981
1,930,704

Libraries Schools Parks

522,643
6,971,490

61,487
547,009

18,25t
347,355

$ 2,753,990 2,015,ó85 7,494,133 608,496 365,606

59 )o )5'7

2,753,990

20,257

7,429,728
44,148

59

2,011,430
4,196

569,92s
38,571

361,677
3,929

Total fund balances 2,753,990

Total lìabilities and
tund balances $ 2,753,990

2,015,626 7 ,473 ,87 6

2,015,685 7,494,133

608,496 365,606

608,496 36s,606
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A-1

Police Public Works

7,602 318,770 6,746 t4,0s4,629

20,3t6 61,021,2A9

7,602 479,6A1 6,746 14,030,313 16,118,024

479,6A1 6,746 t4,05A,629 77,139,233
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended June3},2012

Special Revenue Funds

DCU
Center

School
Lunch

11,043,882

574,560

Police
Auxiliary

8.038.790

Off-Street
Parking

City
Revolving

942,565

Revenues:
lntergovemmental
Investment eamings
Charges for services
Donations
Contributions to permanent funds
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Health and human services
Education
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
ofrevenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Issuance ofbonds
Issuance of refunding bonds
Refunded bonds redeemed

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in
fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

632,463 t1.618.442

632,463

499,096

221,154
354,002

t1,920,760

8,038,790

8,387,906

1,477,822

1,086,292
655,r79

3,353,107

942,s6s

5,290
24t,64s

84,697

'11 1\7

1,074.2s2 11,920,760 8,387,906 3,219,293 409,385

(441,789) (302,318) (349,116) (3,2t9,293) s33, I 80

795,959 350,163

795.9s9 3s0,163 3,353,10'7

3s4,r70 (302,3 l8)

(1,236,s20) 3,01s,894

$ (882,350) 2,713,s76 \,047 559,869 t,651,639

1,047 1 33,8 14

426,055

533,1 80

r,1 18,459

tt2



^-2

Special Revenue Funds

School
Revolving

9,064

2,055,548

2,012,373

Receipts
Reserved

9s1,s37

6,930,147

405,121

Community
Development

4,9s2,100

Workforce
Central

City
Grants Subtotal

6,369,873 t6,039,433
419

4,329,6s6

39,36s,889
419

19,174,073
4,329,656

405.t21

2,064,612 8,286,805 4,952,100 6,369,873 20,369,s08 63,275,158

3,710,349

446,886
389,866

6,524,638

2,153,145
4,888,3 13

10,363,202

103,822
1,726,985

674,272

32,094
66,364

20,008,197

2,t58,435
13,s17,864
16,972,537
13,933,133

1,659,397
2,226,081
4,384,621

1,786,426
r,465,411

58,1 03,9052,012,373 4,547.t01

52,239 8,286,80s 404,999

1,692,664
(s,754,915) (4t6,772)

6,s24,638

(t s4,7 6s) 361,311

936,88 I
(5 l 8,0e3)

5,171,253

7 ,r31,276
(6,689,780)

2,502

2,502 (4,062,2s1) (4t6,772)

(11,773)

t27,157

I 15,384

(ts4,76s)

1,492,433

1,337,668

780,099

7,820,064

441,496

5,612,749

27,552,037

418.788

54,741 4,224,554

1,989,637 12,798,858

2,044,378 17,023,412 8,600,163 33,164,786

(Continued)
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Combining Staternent ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds

For the fi scal year ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Charges for services
Donations
Contributions to permanent funds
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Gene¡al govemment
Public safety
Health and human services
Education
Public works
Culture and recreation
Commun'i ty development

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
ofrevenues ove¡
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
T¡ansfers in
Transfers (out)
Issuance ofbonds
Issuance of refunding bonds
Refunded bonds redeerned

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in
fund balances

Fundbalances beginning

Fund balances ending

I ,096,180 t7 ,880,970

(1,096,180) (13,3rs,074)

- (s23,000)
2,045,000 8,035,000

t9,43s,763 2,893,283 5,867,t95

(19,43s,763) (2,893,283) (s,867,les)

39,435 150,000
(952.500)

4,265,565 3,034,000

Capital Projccts Funds
Rehabilitation

DCU Street and of Public Capital School
Construction Sidewalk Buildings Equipment Construction

4,565,896

4,565,896

1,096,180
17,880,970

lr,875,8',7'7
53,201
5,695

6,709,305
776,103

15,582

16,85 I
I,615,460

11,631
320,722
666,089
262,530

5,867,195

2.045,000 7,512,000 3,3s2,500

948,820 (s,803,074) (16,083,263)

(1,261,403) (1,789,378) (3,42e,881)

$ (312,s83) ('1,s92,4s2) (19,s13,144)

3,1 84,000

290,717

(t,862,906)

(1,s72,18e)

(5,867, I 95)

1,902,s23

(3,964,672)



Capital Projects Funds

Parks Union Station
Improvements Garage

307,048

605,886 5,478,830

4ó85,500 800,000



CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACHUSBTTS

Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Govemmental Punds

For the fiscal year ended June30,2012

Permanent Funds

Hope
Cemetery Schools Parks

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Investment eamings (losses)
Charges for services
Donat'ions
Contributions to permanent funds
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cur¡ent:

General government
Public safety
Health and human services
Education
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
ofrevenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Issuance ofbonds
Issuance of refunding bonds
Refunded bonds redeemed

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in
fund balances

Fundbalances beginning

Fund balances - ending

(66,6s8)

60,803

(ss,76s) (s,621)

500

(t6,2e4)

7,1 88

(e,848)

(s,8 ss)

830

(5s,76s) (s,121) (e,106) (e,848)

33,747

124,552

7,380

33,747 t24,552 7,3 80

(6,685) (89,512) (129,673) (16,486) (9,848)

830

830

830

(5,855)

2,7s9,845

2,753,990

(89,s12)

2,1 0s,1 38

2,0r5,626

(t29,673)

7,603,549

(16,486) (9,848)

624,982 37s,454

7,473,876 608,496 365,606
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A-2

Permanent Funds

Police Public Works Memorial Other Subtotal

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

(207) (e,2s0) (14,374) (211) (178,228)

68,491

44,844,666
(t1't,7s6)

19,174,073
4,329,656

68,491
405,121

68,644,251(207) (e,2s0) (14,374) (211) (109,737)

2,561
5,s80

500 34,247
7,380
2,s61

130,962

14,051,163
16,194,692
17,024,110
26,837,735
21,849,773
8,634,84s
4,399,t48

1,786,426
t,465,411

(20'7)

2,561 5,580 500 175,150 112,243,303

(1 1,8 1 1) (te,9s4) (7r1) (284,887) (43,s99,0s2)

830 8,791,076
(8,1 65,280)
23,022,565
7,422,000

(7,521,000)

23,549,361830

(207)

7,809

7,602

(11,811)

330,s81

(19,9s4)

499,555

(711)

7,4s7

(284,0s7) (20,049,6e1)

14,314,370 36,t67,7ts

318,770 479,601 6,746 14,030,3t3 16,118,024

(Concluded)
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B-1
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Airport Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Forthe fiscal year ended June30,2012

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (out) $ - (430,152) (430,152)

Budgetary fund balance - beginning 430,752 430j52 430j52
Budgetary fund balance - ending S 430,152
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Revenues:
Fees
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits
Ordinary maintenance
Debt service
Indirect costs

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Translêrs (out) f'or pension bond

assessment

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balance

Budgetary fund balance - beginning

Budgetary fund balance - ending

CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Golf Course Enterprise Fund (nonmajor)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
For the fiscal year ended Il;riLe 30,2072

Original FínaI
budget budget

1,206,567 1,206,567
22,160 22,160

r,229,727

294,420
710,265
190,564

9,920

r,228,727 1,126,816

278,084
709,887
243,128

29,420

1,205,169 l,26r,119 l,26r,119

(32,392) (134,303)23,558

I,726,097
719

B-2

Variance with
final budget

positive
(negative)

(80,470)
(21,441)

(101,911)

Actual

278,084
709,887
243,128
29,420

(23,558) (23,558)

(23'558) 
[3],iiål

757,867

(23,558)

134,303

(101,911)

757,867

151,867

55,950

$ (55,950) 55,950
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B-3
CITY OF' WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
For the fiscal year ended June30,2072

Original Final
budget budget

33,583,314 33,593,314
265,000 265,000

Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits
Ordinary maintenance
Capital
Debt service
Indirect costs

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (out) forpension bond

ASSESSMCNT

Net changes in fund balance

Budgetary fund balance - beginning

Budgetary fund balance - ending

Actual

33,182,367
628,798

Variance with
final budget

positive
(negative)

(400,947)
363,799

33,848,314 33,949,314 (37,149)

320,957
819,624

19,467
1,356

r6,464

5,568,676
18,380,510

24,500
6,041,843
3,19]I,753

5,602,425
18,346,76r

24,500
6,047,843
3,19r,1s3

33,81 1,165

5,281,468
11,527,131

5,033
6,040,487
3,t75,289

33,207,282 33,207,292

647,032 641,032

32,029,414 1,177,868

r,787,757 1,140,719

(641,032) (64r,ß2) (64r,032)
I,140,719

1,020,980

1,I40,779

1,020,980 1,020,980

1,020,980 1,020,980 2,167,699 1,140,719
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Water Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Forthe frscal year ended June30,2012

Original Final
budget budget

26,274,973 26,274,973
640,000 640,000

Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits
Ordinary maintenance
Capital
Debt service
Indirect costs

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other hnancing (uses):
Transfers (out) for pension bond

assessment
Transfers (out) other

Total other financing (uses)

Net changes in fund balance

Budgetary fund balance - beginning

Budgetary fund balance - ending

26,769,r88
r,296,34s

B-4

Variance with
final budget

positive
(negative)

(105,785)
656,345

Actual

26,914,973 26,914,973

9,789,672
3,466,369

25,000
10,796,752
1,993,685

27,465,533 550,560

9,833,481
3,439,023

25,000
1.0,796,752
r,977,221

9,015,652
3,287,009

5,510
10,79r,991

1,993,685

25,093,907

2,377,626

(843,496)
(801,061)

774,020
179,359

19,430
4,761

26,07r,477

843,496

(843,496)

(843,496)

l,646,ggg

$ r,646,999

26,071,477

943,496

(843,496)
(801,061)

(1,644,557)

(801,061)

l,646,999

977,570

1,528,130

7,528,130

845,938 2,374,068 1.s28.130

(1,644,557)

727,069

1,646,999

t2t



CITY OF WORCBSTBR, MASSACIIUSBTTS

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Activities
Schedule by Function and Activity

Jlune30,2012

Function and activity Land

General government:
Manager
Information Services

Total general government

Public safety:
Police
Fire
Code Inspection
Communications

Total public safety

Health and human services:
Elder Affairs

Public works

Education

Culture and recreation:

Library
Auditorium
DCU Center
Hope Cemetery
Parks

r,799.00s t5

5,647,137

Buildings

l,g3g,g73

1,839,973

Improvements
other than
buildings

5,647,1.3r

514,500
7,074,600

209,905

2,103,270
12,275,654

359,383
721,875

252,156

460,182 252,156

1.,s90,957 33,1 10

3,489,339 36,587,476 463,226

3,447,537 239,652,348 2,357,428

6,105,800 6s,060,150

23,973,337

23,973,337Total culture and recreation

Total governmental activities
capital assets

305,000
150,000
263,000
290,000

15,206,734
1,423,557

43,005,547
829,060

4,595,252s,097.800

20,499,912 360,191,086 27,079,257
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c-1

Rolling
equipment

Equipment
and other Infrastructure

Construction
in progress

13,038,102

Total

162.999
18,685,233
2,002,912

162,999 13,038,102 20,688,205

2,928,591
18,074,636

570,567
857,474

45,146
3,447,179

73,579
456,796

1,279
135,599

826,468

3,486,264 607.r93 826,468 22,431,268

1,624,067

r,629,224 52,021

t,262,022

r04,554,739 54,504,527 201,280,552

480,753 4,453,496 25r,653,584

244,065

243,965

44,994

r24,041

844,591

15,755,599
r,573,557

44,158,r32
1,1 19,060

213,672 3.528.677 37.776,844

244,065 412,900 213.672 4,373,268 100,383,r92

5,840,306 2,497,I35 10s,594.879 76,369,393 598,060,868
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Function and activify

Governmental
activities

capital assets
July 1, 2011

$ 7,098,758
2,099,933

294

Additions Deductions

c-2

Governmental
activities

capital assets
June 30, 2012

18,685,233
2,002,972

CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Activities
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jurre30,2012

General government:
Manager
Information Services
Treasurer

Total general
government

Public safety:
Police
Fire
Code Inspectron
Communrcatlons

Total public safery

Health and human seryrces;
Elder Affairs

Public works

Education

Culture and recreation:

Library
Auditorium
DCU Center
Hope Cemetery
Parks

9,188,885

3,240,560
17,089,980

626,393
988,402

21,945,325

1,839,060

176,023,889

250,129,569

16,474,076
1,742,197

45,655,186
1,141 ,967

35,971,176

100,897,096

11,586,475

1,919,216

87, I 55 20,688,20s

11,586,475
86,861

294

2,928,591
18,014,636

510,567
851,414

22,431,2681,919,216 1,493,333

36,885,582

14,007,029

311,969
994,620

55,8 l6
130,928

214,993 1,624,067

11,628,979 201,280,552

t2,483,013

7,169,143

4,051,854

5,226,991

718,477
769,234

2,666,197
29,907

2,159,196

5,740,901

251,653,584

15,7 55,599
1,573,557

44,158,132
1,119,060

37,776,844

I 00,383,192
Total culture and

recreation

Total govemmental
activities capital assets $ 560,023,824 69,685,358 31,648,314 598,060,868
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D-1
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Agency Fund
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

For the Fiscal Ycar Ended June30,2012

Balance Balance
July 1,2011 Ädditions I)eductions June 30,2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES

$ 434,620 432,683 (476,301) 391,002

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 6,619 6,333 (6,619) 6,333
Due to student groups

Total liabilitios

428,001 426,350 (469,682) 384,669

$ 434,620 397,002
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STATISTICAL SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Worcester's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's
overall financial health.

Table of Contents

Page

Financial Trends I29
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 142
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the City's most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 147
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City's current level of outstanding debt and the City's ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 150
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities
take place.

Operating Information 153

These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual financial
reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Net Assets by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2005

Table 1

2006 2007 2008 200920042003
Governmental activities:

lnvested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business{ype activities:
lnvested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business{ype net assets

Primary government:
lnvested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets
_4S!92 (eg,?gqr (8e,e14) (151,38e)

177,878 164,254 2æp4o- ---211,9-r:
(299,937) (222,447) (222,00s)
186,721 189,821 l%B-90-

$ 118,339 140,340 127,478 128,364 175,962 187,454 201,247 236,864 280,669 288,77611,862 13,305 39,064 29,255 45,711 65,072 42,371 29,804 42,290 40,376

= 
(91,991 (109,79'l) q!,gg!\ (11q,991) (111,991 (1gl,1gÐ (rIs,g?gr (209:91Ð ezo,tgt) (232,785\

_$___q82rc____4,8e4 9Ãi{--:;EiITT - 10-i.0-ìõ---'-æø ---68-;295- Æ ____gal!g_- ----Eæ6-tr

275,143 298,315
45,711 65,072

2010 2011

87,708
1,601
8,344

357,854 368,377
29,804 43,891

2012

87,856

10,776

376,632
40,376

$ 110,722 117,755 109,124 104,871
413 253 2,749

99,181 110,861 121,480 120,990

12,739 6,768-gEî8T----ø.7aT12,739 13,550 20.271 24,749 11.716 '10,026 7,978

258,095
'13,558

(1 02,e83)
168,670

236,602
41,813

233,235
29,255

322,727
42,371

(16s,2s7)
199,801
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2003

Table 2

2OO5 2006 2007 2OOS (1) 2009 2O1O 2011 2012Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Health and human services
Education
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Redevelopment
lnterest on debt

Total governmental activities expenses
Business-type activities:

Water
Sewer
Airport
Golf course (nonmajor)

Total business-type expenses
Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Govemmental activities:

Charges for services:
Public safety
Public works
Other activities

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total governmental activities program revenues
Business{ype activities:

Charges for services:
Water
Sewer
Airport
Golf course (nonmajor)

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type activities program revenues
Total primary government program revenues

$ 14,195 14,458 16,316
93,949 98,633 105,119
19,164 17 ,431 21,524

303,760 314,670 329,699
26,567 34,274 31,077
14,513 16,073 14,625
4,002 4,429 4,189
4,238 30 5,770

18,222
1 13,545
20,880

353, 1 26
27,027
15,794
3,565

22,141
24,352

4,527

19,583
115,321

19,873
366,311
26,954
18,621
3,873

22,268
132,411
23,366

406,208
34,727
19,895
4,764

23,416
'130,554

21,229
421,160
4'l,457
16,475
4,942

25,669
31,134
s,082

20,862
126,546
23,994

425,765
33,387
20,018

6,1'18

2't,026 21 ,552
123,114 126,488
25,033 20,597

432,824 435,526
37,435 39,584
17,528 21,535
7,926 4,399

?^!,9!? =?1,9?9 ___:4,r:! __jqq9g _Æ_ 25,366 24,534 25,351 22,573 23,s68505,301 524,624 554,0s3 577,4er ----505€Tt-66e-po5 j8-x?6-- --6Ðîn----¿Éø --otF¿o-
20,753
16,310
4,389

20,804
17,238
3,958

2't,535
22,719

4,158

24,727
28,309

4.360

25,213
29,258

4,703

25,638
32,742
5.047

24,911
33,737

1,417

24,388
35,284

42,534 ---- 4- 43,-ß.0-

l,lll

:'221 ---Æ ____Æ =1r2+. =!,!8g =1,??! 1,148 1,122 1,238 1,246
+s,438 52,184 5857il - 6oZOl 63,033 64,549 61.303 60,918

___l1g,8gg_ 746,5s0 748,762 754ñ

277,029 284,486

11,652
4,510
8,784

12,043
6,337
6,823

12,997
6,674
6,889

303,41 1

't2,940
7,436
6,700

295,107

22,735
22,449

978
1,041
1,006

13,925
8,005
7,780

315,692

13,580
9,160
7,641

326,260

11,813
11,078
7,383

345,1 03

13,536
10,970
8,443

348,563

987
1,413
3,514

13,775 15,935
10,986 11 ,917
9,738 I,823

368,1 57 363,538
?-'199 =,1':39 ==:,1q9 --:gL --J^_!19! --Æ--4,!8?- 28:,084 32,s1G r0;6sr4,313 3i4,22s 335,131 ù,4ñ ---.410"95'-JB-5.62õ-J-æ-F6Z- --loe-Fe-6--43s"szf 410-þõ4304'3'13 314,228 335,131 ù,4ñ l-1o-pst-JB-5.62õ-J-æ-5eZ- ¡os,sg6 43s,s72 41o,so4

22,534
14,548
1,002
I,050
1,329

24,623
25,670

844
1,088

s93

24,251
26,928

802
1,127
1,174

25,946
31,320

152
'1 ,035
1,282

641

27,O02
34,443

1,127

2,691

23,154 24,132
15,627 19,775

687 915
1,068 1,029

3,081

24,993 24j02
28,939 29,247

862 1,01s

1,470 3,362
41 ,933 45,1 00

_$___14!?4!_ ___¡I! r2¡

1,202 1.241
1,048
1,395

__J,9!r_ 2,255 4,226 14,82150,173 51,323 55,07t -56"508 
-f2p5S-

s0,173 51,323 55,07t i8-,5õa-l2p5s- 6027ã---i0-376- 6526-t
____!gg.994_ ____zrylzr_ _ ñ@ @@_---460É-7r ----Ze-sFa¡- ---EdIù-

3,114 2.255

t30
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CITY OF WORGESTER, MASSAGHUSETTS
Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis ofaccounting) Table2
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2OO7 _ 2008 (l) 2OO9 2O1O 20't1 2012

Net (expense)/revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Totat primary government net (expense)/ revenue

General Revenues and Other Changes in
Net Assets

Governmental activities:
Property taxes
Motor vehicle excise taxes
lntergovernmental
Other
Transfers (net)
Gain on sale of capital assets
Donations
Extraordinary item - transfer of airport debt to
governmental activities

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities

Transfers (net)
Loss on airport disposal
Extraordinary item - transfer of airport debt to
governmental activities

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

$ (200,s88) (210,396) (218,922) (250,095) (184,866) (283,385) (285,203) (272,445) (251,887) (282,745)

--ç91¿ 
---:3{{9=--=-=4a------Gal¿-:lCg+-:gë+, =g,qaq-'.(4,271) is27\ 4,34s

_q_ 91,59q _ 99 9I __prdlùt ---p5d;cõl---l188-360i --l2d5ã -Q?@ @L--@Er6 --@a,¿oo)

$ 144,316
13,438
42,O16

7,174
442

156,461
12,581
39,406
6,458
I ,168

161 ,648
13,503
43,026
9,073

BB

145

171,490
12,096
44,146

9,493
(580)

107

179,130
1l,893
53,813
10,060
(2,2e1)

159

188,930
12,932
54,561

9,000
(540)
622
291

197,472
11,393
48,493
6,269

96
296

58

205,558
1 1,050
37,476

9,505
(1,733)

47

215,511 22sA60
I1,5r9 1'r,866
36,220 36,298't2,809 9,886
13,2sO 3,366

48 68

580 2,291

(concluded)

1,733 (1 3,250) (3,366)
- (20,1e3)

207,386 216,074 227,483 ----Æ,7d 
--Ml6¿---ñ;W- n4øT lo1-þõt---Zs-ñõÍ - zaa,s++

(4_42) (1,168) (88) 540 (s6)

6,398 5,678 8,561 (13,343) 67,898 (17,58e) (21,126) (10.542\ 34,415 4,1 99

--ø=.----lirõii--rcin--------Ead- 

------@õ----l?3r---@Sh--lilm
-$--Zõ6FZZ- ---r14Ñ--z,øl -Æj{g--55þ55---lõ633d--7æF81--76 -Z5E;9iZ- ---æÐ

(1) OPEB liability was recognized in the financial statements starting in fiscal 200g.



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)
Table 3

Meals Tax Sales Tax Total
Property

Tax

Motor
Vehicle Hotel/Motel

Excise Tax Tax

2003
2004
200s
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

$ 144,316
156,461
161 ,648
171,490
179,130
188,930
197,472
205,558
215,511
225,460

13,438
12,581
13,503
12,096
11,893
12,932
11,393
I 1,050
11,519
1 1,866

713
684
753
709
845

1,104
1,483
1,422
1,787
1,939

198
327

1,431
2,454
2,568

158,467
169,726
175,904
184,295
191,868
203,184
210,705
219,492
231,299
241,865

20
30
31

32
32
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2005

Table 4

General fund:
Reserved
Unreserved
Restricted
Unassigned

Total general fund

All other governmental funds:
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds (1)
Permanent funds

Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total all other governmental funds

$ I ,618 1,618 1 ,618
9,437_ 10,385 14,857 9,290 ß,02; 1i,eo; 6.10; e,o2;

(2)

2010 2011 2012

1 ,070 1,444

2003 2004 2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 28,130 32,861 37,387 29,102 34,323 30,418 34,077 24,963

-S-ÐF45- 
-7-7W 

-f5Oì6- @

13,438 17,974 18,098
34,529 8,215 4,752

125 79 89
- 14,215 13,918
- 37,287 31,849
- 22,673 25,057
- (11,518) (35,686)

78,510 io-34t-3r.--ñ-ã;T3s.

18,526 20,103
(13,e88) 20,372

127 t:

20,646 18,056 11,171
'r6,e23 (12,039) 1 

,1,196

': ": 
1s1-

(1) Unreserved fund balance in capital projects funds increased when temporary debt outstanding at year end was repaid with
permanent debt before the audit reporting date in fiscal 2004, 200s and 200g.

(2) Fund balances were redefined by GASB statement #54 starting in fiscal 2011.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)
Table 5

20102003 2004 2006 2007 2008 2009 2011 2012

148,322 156,945 163,706 171,484 177,781 189,419 197,777 204,832 216,g70 225,50114,085 13,205 13,101 12,189 12,545 12,677 11,370 11:551 11,311 lr,aes2,215 2,123 1,971 2,252 2,188 3,684 4,941 5,539 6,365 o,or s2,702 2,669 2,867 2,564 2,520 2,414 2,605 2,272 2,285 Z,An5,266 5,486 5,692 5,571 4,354 4J26 4,402 ¿,ASO 4,865 5,210315,660 327,833 356,548 350,840 407,873 4o5,7ss 411,424 423:,208 44s,106 417,B3B17,644 16,758 17,645 17,913 19,920 21,107 21,055 22,847 23,539 24,9882,636 2,554 2,925 3,234 3,148 3,308 3,137 g,tgo 2,806 z,aqs1,085 1,81',1 2,056 3,100 4,292 2,766 (929) 1,598 2,54g (35)2,683 3,022 2,908 2,640 3,793 4,951 2,468 g,o¡s 5,528 4,67765 48 145 107 159 291 58 47 4a 681,215 1.224 3.063 1725 12c,F, I ô.t" I tÀÉ. I cnl 0^

2005
REVENUES
Property taxes
Motor vehicle excise taxes
Other taxes and in-lieu payments
Penalties and interest on taxes
Licenses and permits
lntergovernmental (1)
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
I nvestment earnings (losses)
Donations
Contributions to permanent funds
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Health and human services
Education
Public works
Culture and recreation
Fringe benefits
Community development
Redevelopment
State & regional charges (1)
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues

(under) expenditures

_:Æ ==!,2?! _==199 ==1,7,2? _.1,2?? 1,013 1,246 1,621 8e 1,723513'578 5s3,678 572,627 -73$f9 ---æe,a-6a -EWñT --6-5e-;55f i8-5228 ---lZõF55 f5F0-
12,006
75,079
17,001

239,1 50
24,026
12,791
85,622
4,001
4,238
2,424

26,715

12,023
72,876
14,055

256,223
24,833
11,314

103,213
4,429

30
r 4,909

27,216

13,861
79,286
18,545

271,977
29,652
14,295

118,377
4,189
5,769

16,514

28,124

14,314
82,119
17,045

261,385
29,629
11,323

126,381
3,565

19,445

30,430

15,720
87,316
16,470

257,076
44,611
14,203

130,746
3,873

20,s51

32,886

17,957
93,942
19,649

261,869
49,3ô3
14,766

136,2't3
4,764

23,914

32,774

16,644
92,323
18,172

285,359
39j26
16,753

124,318
4,942

26,102

34,761

15,308
89,308
21,118

297,701
39,087
20,952

138,899
6,1 18

26,86s

36,637

15,936 28,650
90,395 94,006
22,499 17,788

302,392 299,134
53,773 55,072
17 ,402 16,758

147,319 143,722
7,926 4,399

28,255 29.526

38,813 36,747zc,+o+ ¿+,ctc __Æt_ ___4491_ 
=29^,9.?9_ =??,929 26,098 24,827 24,023 26,890528'5't7 565,636 625,263 620S70 ---64frT 68Iõ20- j-8-AF5E- --- tTø,azo 748,733 7s2,6s2

25,464 24,515 24,674 25,034 26,020 25,829

(14,e39) (31,958) (52,636) (47,051) (s,604) (2g,s2s) (25,044) (31,5e2) (27,878\ (4s,102)
(continued)
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Changes in Fund Balances ofGovernmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2003 20052004 2006 2007 2008 2009

Table 5

2010 2011

oTHER FINANCtNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $
Transfers (out)
Premium on issuance of bonds and notes
Sale of capital assets
lssuance of refunding bonds
lssuance of bonds and notes
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent
Refunded bonds redeemed
Total other financing sources (uses), net

17,947 14,248 17,608 14,048 13,968 21,296 23,452(17,505) (13,722) (17 ,520) (14,628) (r 6,25e) (20,713) (23,356)633 487 3,697 702 464 423 651_ 1,366 325
9,345 - 18,241 55,960 542

25,665 72,440 54,915 _ 33,775 50,067
(e,345) - (18,241) (55,e60) -

: 26,740 73,483 5870il -IT---3lTAt ---s2,Æ ----m7t

21 ,954 5t,549
(23,686) (38,2se)

820 804
29 478

2s,955 34,900

25,072 49,432

2012

27,305
(23,832)

479

7,422

29,867

(7,521)
33,720

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

(1) Charter school and school choice assessments are shown as state and regional charges from 2004 fonvard.
intergovernmental revenue.

$ 11,801 41.4s5 _____g,qg1_ ___l1qg?gl ___4344____?9,51_q_ ___eg,e6sl __lgÉ?gl 21,554 (1s,382):

10.3% 9.9% 9.3% 9A% 9.6% 9.2% 9.3% 9.s% 9.2Yo 9.2o/o

ln years prior these charges were netted against

(concluded)
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Governmental Funds Tax Revenues by Source

Last Ten FiscalYears
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Motor
Fiscal Property Vehicle Hotel/Motel
Year Tax Excise Tax Tax

Table 6

Meals Tax Sales Tax Total

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

14,085
13,205
I 3,1 01

12,189
12,545
12,677
11,370
11,550
11,311
11,888

713
684
753
709
845

1,104
1,483
1,422
1,787
1,939

198
327

1,431
2,450
2,568

163,120
170,83'l
177,560
184,382
191,171
203,200
210,630
219,266
231,950
241,928

$ 148,322
156,942
'163,706

171,484
177,781
'189,419

197,777
204,832
216,370
225,501

20
30
31

32
32

t36
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cITy oF IVORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
General Fund Expenditures - Modified Accrual Basis of

Accounting
Yearended Jlne30,2012

Graph I

Fringe benefits
255s%

Public safety

t3.83%

138



General government

Public safety

Health and human

$ 10,326

64,04s

13,78s I 3,981

78,s76 79,656

Table 7

20r0

12,749

76,689

20tt
13,730

74,931

2012

14,598

77.812

2003

CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

General Fund Expenditures - Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

20052004 2006 2007 2008 2009

10,391

63,359

11,216

64.776

12,574

71,360

13,316

74,813

seruces 3,659 2,841 2,805 3,629 3,832 3,776 2,639 575 675 764
Education 181,00ó 189,472 rg0,9r2 rg9,4rr 19r,976 rg7 ,241 199,840 198,001 205,91 8 222,923
Public works 17,598 15,086 19,000 17,537 16,ó10 2o,r2r 22,4gr 18,096 18,255 18,030
culture and recreation 7,973 ó,839 7,121 7,679 g,44t g,400 9,016 7 ,g55 7 ,807 g,123
Fringe benefits (1) 85,622 103,212 118,377 t26,3lt 130,746 136,213 t24,3t| 13B,899 r47 ,3tg 143,722
state and regional charges (1) 2,424 14,gog 16,514 19,445 20,550 z3,gt4 26,102 26,86s 2g,254 29,526
Debt service 44,971 44,299 44,478 44,rr4 45,466 45,328 45,523 46,853 47,095 47,06iTotals s 417,623 450,408 475,199 502,130 505,750 527,354 523,566 526,682 543,984 562,565

( I ) Charter school and school choice assessments are shown as state and regional charges from 2004 forward. In years prior these charges were netted againstrnrergovernmental revenue.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
General Fund Revenues - Modifred Accrual Basis of Accounting

Year ended June 30. 2012

All other revenue
3.88%

Graph 2

Property taxes
38.77yo

lntergovernmental
55.31o/o

Motor vehicle exc¡se taxes
2.04o/o
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Table 8
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

General Fund Revenues - Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

20042003 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Property taxes

Motor vehicle excise
taxes

Other taxes and
in-lieu payments

Penalties and interest
on taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovemmental (1)

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Investment eamings

Miscellaneous

163,706

I 3,101

1,97t

2,867

5,692

280,301

4,052

2,925

1,170

1,079

177,781

12,54s

2,1 88

2,520

4,355

295,983

5,684

3,148

2,349

1,093

507,646

204,832

I 1,550

3,208

) )'7)

4,890

303,512

5,909

3,1 90

t05

1,438

540,906

20tt
216,370

11,311

4,934

2,28s

4,865

306,267

5,939

2,806

68

2012

225,501

11,888

4,440

2,872

5,210

321,719

5,814

2,845

100

148,322

14,085

2,215

2,702

5,266

241,946

3,613

2,636

664

89s

156,942

t3,205

2,123

2,670

5,486

268,001

3,864

2,554

476

/J-t

171,484

t2,189

) )\)

2,s64

5,571

293,362

3,760

3,234

2,140

852

189,419

12,677

2,556

2,4t4

4,726

311,47 5

6,232

3,308

I,806

7'73

197,777

I1,370

) \)q

2,60s

4,402

295,327

5,91 8

3,137

462

790
Totals s _ 42234!_ ___4s6p:!_ __473ß64_ 4e7,408 524,3t7

In years prior these charges were netted against

1,429 1,318

556.274 581,707535,3 86

(l) Charter school and school choice assessments are shown as state and regional charges from 2004 forward.
intergovemmental revenue.

141



crTY oF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Assessed Valuation

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts expressed in millions)

s12,563 9t2,727 Sl2,l37
$11,596
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Assessed value Ratio of
Assessed to
Equalized

Value

Table 9

Total
Assessed

Value

Tax
Exempt

Real
Property

$ 2,1 10,469

2,449,698

2,445,616

2,494,021

2,768,326

2,890,917

3,004,042

2,996,06s

2,960,6s9

4,460,004

CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value ofTaxable property

l¿st Ten Fiscal Yea¡s

(Amounts expressed in thousands, except for total direct tâx rate)

Fiscal
Year

Residential
Property

s 5,912,08 I

7,036,273

8,498,913

9,445,223

10,3t2,441

10,462,845

9,816,042

8,5 85,028

8,495,190

8, I 57,s09

Commercial and
Industri¿l
Property

1,382,048

1,446,202

1,549,889

t,827,404

1,914,173

1,9 r 5,408

1,933,249

t,916,902

r,936,409

2,521,779

Totâl taxable
Personal Assessed
Property Value

7,621,078

8,818,752

t 0,360,089

I 1,595,528

12,563,051

12,726,994

12,t37,258

10,91t,942

l 0,8só,862

1t,277 ,616

Total
Direct t¡x
Rate (l)

19 59

17 75

t5.77

14.88

14 47

14.97

16.41

19.02

20.10

20.32

State
Equalized

Value

Ratio of
Exempt property

To total
Assessed value

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

20r0

20t l
2012

326,949

336,277

311,28'.7

322,901

336,437

348,741

387,967

410,012

425,263

592.328

105. l4

12t.66

106.86

1t9 ól

99.28

r00.57

87.78

78.92

91.02

94.55

2t 69%

2t 74

19.10

17.70

18.06

18.51

19.84

21-54

21 43

28.34

7,248,688

7,248,688

9,694,618

9,694,618

t2,654,572

t2,654,572

1 3,827,1 80

13,827, I 80

11,928,304

t1,928,304

9,731,s47

l l,2ó8,450

12,805,705

14,089,s49

15,331,377

15,617,91t

15,141,300

13,908,007

13,817,s2r

t5,137,620

(1) Per $1,000 ofassessed value



CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Direct Property Tax Rates (1) (2)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 10

Total
Direct (3)

Fiscal
Year

Commercial
Residential and Industrial

Real Property Real Property
Personal
Property

3t.44
29.60

27.60

25.20

2s.32
26.20

28.72

33.28

34.65

29.07

2003

2004
2005

2006
2007

2008

2009
2010

2011

20r2

16.16

14.75

13.i8
12.53

12.10

12.54

13.50

15.15

16.06

16.98

31.44

29.60

27.60

25.20

25.32

26.20

28.72

33.28

34.65

29.01

19.59

17.75

15.77

14.88

14.47

14.97

16.41

19.02

20.10
20.32

Source: Assessing Department

(l) Rates are applicable to each $1,000 ofassessed value.

(2) Per the initiatives of Proposition2ll2 adopted by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, the City cannot levy more than2.5 percent of the total full and
fair cash value of all taxable real and personal property. The City's levy is also
limited in that it cannot increase more than 2.5 percent from the prior year, with
certain exceptions for new growth or through overrides and exclusions adopted
by City voters.

(3) Calculated by dividing the net tax levy by total assessed value divided by 1,000.
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T¿ble 1l
CITY OF \ilORCESTER" MASSACHUSETTS

Principal Taxpayers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago

June 30,2012

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

2012

TaxDaver Type of business
Assessed
valuation

Fiscal 2012
tax bill

$ 4,644

? 1s6

I,869

I,80t

t,'77'7

1,s68

1,524

1,235

1,219

1.094

Percentage
oftax levy

2.03o/o

1.46

0.82

0.79

0.78

068

066

0s4

053

048

Assessed
valuation

Fiscal 2003
tax bill

$ 4,038

1,650

1,294

I,803

629

1,30ó

1,588

r,278

770

Percentage
of tax lery

2.70%

t.l I

0.87

121

042

0.87

1.06

0.8ó

0.52

0-94

0.78

0.6 r

Rank Rank

Massachusetts Electric Co.

VHS Acquisition (St Vincent Hospital)

Nstar

Verizon

V3B SA LLC (Lincoln Plaza)

Worcester Renaissance LLC (CitySquare)

440 Lincoln St Holding (Hanover/Allmerica)

Worcester TC LLC (Abbott Bioresearch)

St. Gobain Abrasives Inc. (Norton Company)

TGM Plantation Ridge LLC

Greendale Mall (Mayflower Greendale LLP)

Alexandria Real Estate Equities

Liberty Properties Corp.

Source: Assessor's department

Electric utility

Medical ca¡e

Gas utility

Comrnunications

Shopping plaza

Office/Shopping rnall

Insurance

Biotechnology park

Abrasives rnanufacturer

Apartment complex

Shopping mall

Biotechnology park

Industrial park

Totals 816% S 897,859 $ 17,844 tt.84%

159,151

I 1 5,461

64,291

6r,940

61,144

53,93'7

52,4t0

42,479

41,946

37,625

$ 690,990

I

2

J

4

5

6

1

8

9

10

458,753

52,414

4t,t34

57 1?5

20,020

4 t,53 I

50,5 1 7

40,6s2

24,497

44,825

37,227

28,894

1,409

I,r7t

908

I

3

7

2

13

6

4

8

ll

5

9

10

20.087
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Eight Fiscal Years*

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Collected within the

Fiscal year of the lew

Table 12

Total collections to date
Fiscal

Year
Total tax lely
for fiscal year

762,051

170,372

179,043

1 gB,1 03

197,102

205,326

216,255

227,309

Percentage

of levy

97.76%

97.60

96.84

97.22

97.35

97.17

97.22

96.94

Collections in

Subsequent

Years Amount
Percentage

of lely

100.02%

100.10

r00.22

100.2s

100.16

99.9s

99.82

96.94

Amount

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2OII

20r2

158,415

166,275

773,398

782,947

191,875

199,535

270,277

220,352

3,668

4,259

6,041

5,624

5,537

5,697

5,594

162,092

770,449

179,314

188,419

197,063

204,704

210,277

220,352

* Data is being accumulated from fiscal year 2005 and forward.
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Table 13
CITY OF \ilORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

Governmental activities Business-type activities

Fiscal

Year

General

Obligation
Bonds

Section

108

Note

General

Obligation

Bonds

Total
Primary

Government

Percentage

of Personal

Income (1)

14.51

15.46

16.03

15.03

14.46

14.49

t2.73

12.80

t2.76

11.86

Per

Capita (2)

$ 3,203

3,519

3,691

3,414

3,530

3,753

3,497

3,257

3,215

3,234

Sewer

Note
2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

20tl
2012

45r,740

49r,164

578,420

489,146

490,036

507,329

473,670

463,085

462,302

455,539

5,800

5,800

5,800

5,800

5,800

4,706

4,608

4,505

4,396

101,169

109,380

111,910

103,809

112,729

133,942

I24,562

126,297

125,292

123,801

1,169

1,123

99r

949

906

863

819

774

r,693

552,909

607,5r2

637,253

599,745

609,5r4

647,977

603,801

594,799

592,873

585,429

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Source : Mas sachusetts Dep artment o f Workforce D evelopment
Population data based on 2000 and 2010 Census

(1)
(2)
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Table
CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

t4

Fiscal year

2003 $

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2OII

2012

General
Obligation

Bonds

552,909

600,544

630,330

592,954

602,765

641,27r

598,232

589,372

587,594

579,340

Percentage of
Assessed
Value (1)

7.25%

6.81

6.08

5.11

4.80

s.04

4.93

5.40

5.41

5.r4

Total
Per capita (2)

$ 3,158

7, A))rt t2-

3,586

3,371

3,435

3,654

3,276

1 )11

3,246

3,1 89

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to
financial statements.

See Table of Assessed Value and Estimated Value of Taxable Property
Population data based on 2000 and 2010 Census

(1)
(2)
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Debt Limit (1)

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Table 15
CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASS,{CHUSETTS

Legal Debt Margin
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

2003 2004 200s 2006 2007 2008 2oog 2010 2011 2012

$ 1 81,21 7 362,434 484,731 484,731 632,729 632,729 691 ,35g 691 ,3sg 5s6,415 596,415

170,375 180,376 199,t69 208,140 268,676 268,621 280,473 263,g1s 342,6s4 320,926

$ ___l_q,842_ ___l!4I!_ __ 2s!;62_ 2,t6,sst __é1ps3 __361J!!_ __4q,8sq_ __4n4!_ ____2s3ls1 __lt48s_

Total net debt applicable to the limit
asapercentageofdebtlimit 94.02% 49.77% 41.09% 42.94% 42.46% 42.45% 40.57% 38.17% 57.45% 53.81%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal year 2012

Equalized valuation - real estate and
personal property (January 1, 2010) $ I 1,92g,304 _

Debt limit - 5% of equalized
valuation 596,415

Total bonded debt (including
authorized and unissued of

5294;72't) $ 874,0óó

Less bonded debt not included
in computation of legal debt
margin as defined by Massachusetts

statutes 929,594)

Less bonded debt authorized
but not yet issued which is

outside the debt limit (123,546) 320,926

Legal debt margin S 275,4g9

(1) In fiscal 2004 Massachusetts statute raised the debt limit from 2 ll2Yo to 57o of equalized valuation.
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Personal
lncome

(amounts expressed
Population in thousands) (1)

Per
Capita

Personal Median
lncome (2) Age

Table 16

Public
School

Enrollment (3)
Unemployment

Rate (4)

7 0o/o

7.0

6.0

5.7

63

93

96

10 0

84

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

175,071 (1) $

175,495 (1)

175,770 (1)

175,898 (1)

175,454 (1)

175,521 (1)

182,5e6 (1)

182,635 (1)

181,045 (2)

181,641 (2)

3,909,828

3,989,327

4,216,455

4,47 I ,694

4,742,672

4,646,364

4,757,752

4,937,587

22,244

22,680

24,032

25,704

27,099

26,549

27,185

27,183

33.4

24,885

24,363

24,227

23,404

23,682

22,844

23,126

23,281

23,490

24,360

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce estimates
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Census for fiscal year
source: worcester School Department as of october 1 of each fiscal year
Source: Massachusetts Department of Workforce Development
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CITY OF \MORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Full Time Employees

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 17

20042003 2009

t75200197188201

20062005 2007 2008

General government

Public safety
Police

Ofhcers
Civilians

Fire
Offrcers
Civilians

Other public safety

Health and human services

Education

Public works

Culture and recreation

Water

Sewer

Airport

Golf course (nonmajor)

398
t2

(l) 105

(1) 8e

3,905

196

t43

ttl
52

2t

J

429
r6

95

89

3,821

182

t32

114

58

t6

2

410
l0

86

102

3,658

189

133

lll
54

l8

J

402
il
89

96

3,506

185

129

106

55

t7

J

20t

448
51

403
ll
97

94

3,384

189

13s

105

54

t6

2

384
9

ll6
56

3,433

189

129

111

s8

t6

2

385
8

ll0
53

3,446

114

125

109

59

t7

2

4t3
10

110

55

3,456

ls8

115

100

50

456
47

424
39

189

468
45

468
53

409
49

421
l0

98

92

3,698

r83

133

lt2
54

t6

3

418
49

4t5
49

438
49

465
54

2

399
8

105

54

3,478

163

tt7
102

52

20

2
Totals

Source: Payroll database as ofJune 30th ofeach respective fiscal year

(l) In Fiscal 2003, the Code Inspection department was reorganized from the Health department into its' own division in the public safety category.
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Table 18
CITY OF \ilORCESTE& MASSACHUSETTS

Principal Employers

Current year and nine years ago

2012 2003

UMass Memorial Health Care

University of Massachusetts Medical School

City of Worcester

Saint Gobin

Reliant Medical Group

Hanover Insurance Group

St Vincent Hospital

Polar Beverages

Quinsi gamond Community College

Fallon Comrnunity Health Plan

Massachsetts El ectric Company

Seven Hills Foundation

Price Chopper

Sources:

Type of business

Health care

Education

Government and education

Abrasives m an ufacturer

Health care

Insurance

Health care

Bottling company

Education

Health care

Utility

Education

Supermarket

2012 - Vy'orcester Business Joumal
2003 - 'Worcester Area Chamber of Comme¡ce

Employees

13,814

5,712

5,111

2,000

I,906

1,850

1,728

1,400

1,09s

1,009

N/A

N/A

N/A

Percentage
of total
City

Employment

17.86%

7.38

6.61

2.s9

2.46

2.39

2.23

1.81

1.42

1.30

NiA

NiA

N/A

Employees

8,000

5,200

6,383

1,925

2,400

3,340

2,416

1,665

1,609

1 ,198

Percentage
of total
City

Employment

10.21%

6.63

8.14

2.46

3.06

4.26

3.08

N/A

N/A

NiA

2.t2

2.05

1.53

Rank Rank

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

t0

N/A

N/A

N/A

I

J

2

7

6

4

5

N/A

N/A

N/A

8

9

10
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CITY OF \ryORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Operating Indicators by Function
I¿st Ten Fiscal/Calendar Ye¿rs

Table l9

2010Function
Police (l), (2)

Total arests
Different indi viduals arrested

Arests for selected charges

Drug-related
Aggravated assault

Disorderly conduct, disturbing peace

Prostitution and related

Sexual assault, includìng rape

Amed robbery

Murder /manslaughter, attempted murder

Fire (l)
Total lncidents

Selected incidents
EMS

Structure fires
Arson fires
Vehicle fires
Good intent
False alarm

Hìghways and streets

Streets and ¡esurfacing (l), (3)

Potholes repaired

Sanitation
Refu se collected (tons/day)

Recyclable collected (tons/day)

Water
New connections
Water main breaks

Average daily consumption
(thousands ofgallons)

Wastewater
Average daily sewage treatment

(thousands ofgallons)

Source: Various govemment depadments

2003

8,03 3

6,041

, 1A)

667

1,679

230
s9
52

46

29,350

14,624
'116

43

269

3,65 8

I ,591

9

13,268

106.62

36 99

389

6t

24,09).

31,944

6,482
5,ts4

't,61'l

633

1,357

r95
23

t3
24

22,839

1ó,038

454
42

206
1,019

1,542

l6
I 5,596

107.05

38.7 t

463

65

23,932

27,743

7,0t4
5,366

1,638

s40
I,351

234
22

73

46

2t,778

15,3 83

417

3l
184

1,149
1,705

14

7,895

104 15

37.70

454
76

23,595

3t,364

7,853
5,9t6

2,829
679

|,071
232

JJ

51

7

22,0'16

I 4,558

749

29

184

I,322

3,102

t4
13,403

102.78

3t 20

373

50

22,681

30, I 56

8,581

6,671

2,668
511

1,201

178

29

66

t4

22,498

l 5,654

681

28

t]9
I,514
2,971

t5
I 1,489

100.30

34.77

27t
56

22,187

33,200

9,360
7,082

) <1Á

679

I,291
214

41

70

6

24,735

15,08ó

663

29

132

I,452

3,134

l5
13,088

91.06
36.07

239

55

22,960

3t,700

8,658

6,584

2,582
704

1,210
223

39

43

l2

29,002

l8,ró7
828

37

t20
1,665

3,849

14

12,030

88.65

33.97

188

72

22,264

34,600

7,183
5,84 r

1,758

778

I,222
l3l
38

62

6

28;155

tt,169
ó18

20

83

1,013

2,754

1l
14,932

82.30

347t

48

52

)1 ))\

l l ,l60

22,099

26,550

104
29

tt 5 ìq

33,000

2009200820072004 2005 2006 20tt 2012

6,s46 5,597
4,848 4,4t5

t,240 1,307

33 8 1,04 r

839 727
140 lu
t4 20

55 30

714

28,t52 28,346

15,963 16,s28
57t 631

2t 32

100 80

1,013 I ,340
2,869 2,592

11 16

12,9s4 9,392

81 83 8 l.7l
36.1 3s.42

95
'74

(l)

(2)

Based on a calendar year rather than a fiscaì year.

Data for years prior to 2003 represent the number of times each category of charges was involved in an anest. Thus, three charges or instances of a crime filed on a

single anest would be coded as three charges rather than one anest. Since 2003, the numbeß represent the numbers of arests in which one or more of the charges in a

category were filed i.e. one arrest would be recorded instead ofthree charges

During the following years the miles noted were resurfaced by the state ofMassachusetts and are included in the miles resurfaced above:

2003-.14,2004-1.56
(3)
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CITY OF WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

11
11 11

Table 20

2008 2009 2010 2011
Funct¡on
Publ¡c safety

Police stations
F¡re stations

Education:
Schools

Libraries
Public works

Streets:
Streets (miles)
Sidewalks (miles)
Streetlights

Water:
Main pipes (miles) (1)
Fire hydrants (2)
Reservoirs

Sewers:
San¡tary sewers (miles)
Combined sewers (miles)
Surface sewers (miles)

Municipal parking garages:
Capacity - cars

Pearl Elm
Federal Plaza
Major Taylor Boulevard (3)
Union Station (3)

Culture and recreat¡on
Parks
Parks and playground acreage
DCU Center

Seating capacities
Center stage
End stage
Basketball
Hockey with open curtain
Hockey with closed curtain (3)
lce show
Municipal cemeter¡es

Source: Various government departments

2003

411
606

12,772

614
5,481

10

800
51 1

NiA
NiA

53
1,316

14,639
14,751
13,500
12,239

N/A
12,297

1

414
473

12,972

592
s,940

10
7,379,938

389
66

361

800
51.1

N/A
N/A

54
1,316

14,639
14,75',1

13,500
12,239

N/A
12,297

1

418
480

13,275

582
5,658

10
7,379,938

420
483

13,321

582
5,675

10
7,379,938

393
61

368

800
5lI
98't
N/A

60
I,316

14,ô39
14,751
13,500
12,239
6,880

12,297
1

423
487

13,321

584
5,680

10
7,379,938

396
61

370

800
51 1

981
N/A

60
1,316

14,639
14,751
13,500
12,239
6,880

12,297
I

424
487

13,759

585
5,726

10
7,379,938

396
6'1

371

800
511
98'1

500

60
'l ,316

14,639
14,751
13,500
12,239
7,230

12,297
I

1

't1

49
3

1

12

52
3

1

11

46
3

1

11

45
J

49 49
33

I
10

46
4

800
51 1

981
500

1

10

46
J

800
51 1

981
s00

1

10

45
J

1

10

46
J

414
473

12,994

592
5,940

10

416
478

13,238

592
5,951

10

425
489

13,759

586
5,748

10

430
488

13,759

585
5,762

10
Reservoir gallons of capacity (in thousands) 7,379,938 7,379,938 7,379,938 7,379,938 7,379,938

397 397
61 61

371 371

387
65

358

390
65

362

392
65

364

392
65

364

800
51 1

N/A
N/A

54
1,316

14,639
14,75'l
13,500
12,239

N/A
12,297

1

800
511
N/A
N/A

56
I ,316

14,639
14,751
13,500
12,239

N/A
12,297

1

800
51 1

981
N/A

60
1,316

14,639
14,751
1 3,500
12,239
6,880

12,297
1

14,ô39
14,751
13,500
12,239
7,230

12,297
1

14,800
14,751
13,500
12,239
7,230

12,297
1

60 60
1,328 1,328

(1)
(2)
(3)

Beginning in fiscal year 2007, service laterals, hydrant laterals and fìre pipes were not included in the miles of water mains.
Beginning in fìscal year 2007, private hydrants were not included in the number of fire hydrants
N/A is being reported because the Major Taylor Boulevard and Union Station garages did not open until 2007 and 2010, respectively
N/A is also being reported because hockey with closed curtain did not begin until 2007.
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